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meoln County busy in 1800’

’l‘hns old wag(m no doubt saw serwcem the early days of Lincoln County--the tree and fhe wagon
probably are about the same dge. The wagon is on the Oliver Porter ranch oyt of Nogal today--a

o momenlo to pre -auto davs in meoln County.’

_d\/los% colonful county in the AUL-G. of A
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CARRIZOZO, Hew Mexico 88301

Ruidoso founded
long time ago

by Al Stubbs, Editor
Lincoln County News

While White QOaks was just
beginning to blessom, a sawmill
and post office materialized in
what was to become Ruidoso.

At about the same time, Billy
the Kid was killed in Fort Sumner
by Sheriff Pat Garrett.

Ranches and farms dotted the
Hondo Valley, and Roswell and
Eddy way east and south were a
part of historic Lincolp County.
John Chisum was a big man in the
arca, as J.J. Hagerman and
Charles B. Eddy were to become
big men. '

Eddy played a leading role in
the development of Capitan
(Gray), Coalora, Carrmzozo and
that area of Lincoln County
because of his bringing the
railroad to the area

Carrizozo would never have
been born if the town fathers at
White Oaks had not become
greedy and attempted t8 hold up
the railroad on right-of-way land

Il coal had been of sufficient
quality and quantity in the
Capitan area, that town today
might have been a metropolis

Along 1n the 80s the (Coes were
strong over on the lower Rutdoso
A few years later Bert Bonnell
would be born at Bonito ity
where Bonito Dam 1s now located
So would his brothers.

Fort Stanton was still a fort n
1880--nine years later it would
become a hospital--a Merchant
Marine Hospital

At the turn of the century.
Corona already was ranch
country of long standing Wilhis R
Lovelace arrived on the scene
there to ranch just after 1900

Bill Gallacher and family hved
al White Oaks. So did Nettie Leed
Lemon and many others

White Oaks reached a peak
population of 2.500

Lincoln was the county seat, and
horseback and wagon travel was
rather thick between  the
populated areas of Lancoln County
hetore the turn of the century and
during and after the Lincoln

County war

Mining was strong 1n the Nogal
area at the same Ume as mining
was potent at White Oaks An old
Spanish mine dating back to the
1600s was being reworked, among
others

Schools were big news--at
Nogal, Lincoln, White Oaks,
Capitan and elsewhere. Posl
Offices dotted the area at lowns
which no longer exist and in the
ones which do.

White QOaks was a ‘'culture
center'' because many of the
inhabitatnts came (rom the east
and were used to high-level
cuitural activities.

Lincoln County has as colorful a
history, probably, as any other
single county in the United States

The lawlessness 1n the early
days, gold and precious metals
miming, the railroad, fruit
growing and many other factors
combined to give the countly a
history of note Old Lincoln and
the lLancoln County War evenls
will live on and on into future
centuries -

Nol too many decades ago, the
Hull bowling alley in Ruidoso was
also the social center

And Model Ts were maneu
vering down Picacho Hill on a
road that left much to be desired

Hunting trips from the Pecos
Valles into Lincoln County by
wagon look two weeks sometimes.
‘most of that time spent in travel

Persons from Lincoln County
have made musical history, also.
Curt and Louise Massey, who
hved in My Adobe Hacienda in the
Hondo Valley. mmade a song hy the
same name--wrilten by lLouise
Massey -very famous’

They hit the national spothight--
for vears -musically

Ruirdoso Downs race track and
Sierra Blanca Ski area certainly
are part of the colorful history of
Lincoln  County  Robert 0O
Anderson built the sk area and
later sold it to the Mescalero-
Apache Indian tribe which now
aperates it

The race track. under Gene
Hensles as primaipal stack holder

(Continued on Payge 2)
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'Bill Gallacher

o part ot history

Blllﬁallacllt'mmomer ran a

Dr. Paden moved from White

oarding house in White Oaks
‘here = Gallacher grew up,
Ithough he was born in Cathage,

lew Mexico, which was in Lincoln

‘ounty when the county ran from
1e Rio Grande tb the Pecos,
Gallacher's father was the first
nan to uncover coal in the area—~
1 miles this side of Socorro.
Gallacher, now 89, and John W.
larkey, 86, friends for 75 years,
ell about the early years in
;arrizozo and White Oaks and the
irea.
-Harkey lives here, Gallacher in
he Gallacher ranch north and
vest of Carrizozo at ths north. end
f the Malpais. Gallacher’s lather
vas killed in a mine accident
sefore the turn of the century-at
White Oaks.
Harkey came to this drea when
he was 10 years old--75 years ago.

White Oaks had “‘every kind of

business you can ‘mention—~évery
kind of mineral, water, timber,”
Harkey recalls,

Harkey and Gallacher recall
that George Ulric was president of
the White Qaks bank before it was
moved to Carrizozo to be located
in what is now the Masonic
building. - )

In 1910, Carrizozo “was bigger

than it is now,"” Gallacher said.,
The railroad had been here about’
eight years-in 1910 and attributed
to the rapid growth of the
community then, They recall the
round house fire of 1907 which
virtually destroyed the railroad
yard and scorched and burrded
engines and train cars in the area.

The two old-timers recall that
Gov. W.C, McDpnald, the state’s
first governor, was ,{rom
Carrizozo.

Both men recall Coalora--coal
mining communily near what
later’ was to become Capitan,
Capitan was {irst known as Gray.

They recall tragedy, loo, when a
prominent citizen and civic leader
of Carrizozo took his own life at
the El Cibola Hotel.

The 100F moved from Coalora
Ao_Carrizozo after the coal veins

Oaks to Carrizozo. Paden’s drug is
still a part of Carrizozo.

The two old-timers saw the
Hoyle house built and knew the
Hoyle brothers.’

Dr. Paden’s brother-in-law, Dr.
Lane, also was a doctor in White
Oaks and was a leader in the
community. |

Gallacher and Harkey knew J.J.
Hagerman and John W. Poe.

They remember that **old man
Lee, a sea captain,’”’ ran a saloon
in White Oaks but never took a
drop himself.

Harkey’s wife attended school
in White Oaks.

During the bank panic in 1929,
the “bank went broke’’, tre old-
timers remember well. A.D.
Brownfield was appointed
receiver.

Well, they said, two of the three
banks here wént broke. The First
National--run by Bruckley-stayged
open.

There was a run on the First
National, and people were
standing in line to wilhdraw their
money. “

Two men walked up to Harkey
and asked him to gel-oul of line.

He did,"and the panic here wase

apparently over. The bank flew in
money from Denver to meet the
run,

“Alot of fellows took it (money)
out but put it back,” llarkey
recalls.

Ranches in the early days
include the Bar W ‘“Where
Spencer was bookkeeper.” The
Spencer family owns the ranch
today.

The I Bar X was owned by
Frank.Gooden.

Bynn Brannum bought fut the |
Bar X.

*“The Jimmy Cooper ranch was
out north.. Henry Corn ‘and
‘Sherwood Corn were sheep
ranchers...,” Gallacher said.

The “People’s Store,” a dry
goods store, was where Prehm’s is
now.

A blacksmith shop was where
the motel is, operated by a Mr.

The Lincoln Covnty Hews Bicentennial lssue — Poge 3

'‘Carrizozo's history if linked to the steam engine and railroading. This picture shows a steam
engine and coal chute in Carrizozo about 1909.

fi

gold there,” Harkey said.

All empty sixshooters

Gallacher sold his first 20 cent

Six Bar W ranch men were at & wool and 10,000 ewe lambs to the

dance in Nogal one night-dances
were common ip Nogal.

‘*After the dance was over, they
all emptied their six-shooters in
the air,” Harkey recalled.

George Sly had a ranch right in
the middle of Nogal. He van only

horses, Gallacher remembered.-

Art Davis ran the store at
Nogal--the old school house and
dance hall is now the Presbyterian
Church in Nogal.

Harkey is a cousin of Deg
Harkey, author of
Hell.” Harkey lived and died in
Carlsbad. ,

Dee Harkey sold lots of books in
Lincoln--with John's help, Harkey
recalls.

An old **White Oaks boy," John
Ownes, was sheriff of Lincoin
(County when Lincoin had an
**Adobe jail.”" the old-timers said.

Sheriff Owens never wore a gun-
-relied on reason, Harkey said.

Many ranchers in the old days

traded at the P ;. Pelc;r?sﬂﬁfe at
Angus_Goods for stores/came out

“Mean as”

Corona Trading Co.

Gallacher and Harkey both
were instrumental in getting a
hospital built for Carri.ozo.

Harkey headed up the
operation, with  Gallacher
assisting where necessary along
with other citizens.

"Both men recall a big poker
game in the pool hall many, many
years ago.

Harkey was playing--it was 3 or
4 in the morning.

He grew tired, and Gallacher
took over his pile of chips and
began to play.

Soon he drew a real hand--foar
queens--and cleaned out the game

Bill Norman operated the pool
hall

Gallacher and Harkey recall
many good times together in the
carly days and many joint
projects for the betterment of
Carrizozo and the area

They hoth have been around-
and actuves-for a long. long time

“squecezed oul” in the Capitan
area and the railroad to Capitan
was abaondoned.

1 could have bought the
railroad lies for a song,” Harkey
recalls.

Gallacher's father moved from
1ilinois to Carthage, N.M., in '78
and to White Oaks in 1887,

Bill Gallacher was six years a

Lance. Truman Spencer—brought
the Lance ranch.

Charlie Mayrr was the
blacksmith. Paul \ayer ran the
livery stable.

“Mayer could make anything,”
Harkey said of the blacksmith.

Gallacher bought a wagon from
the livery stable a long, long time
ago. Iva O._Wetmore ran the

“member oI““Ih‘t!"*ﬁmctﬂn—(,*ounby--~~—lwmag,t*—srtahler mm,Ah arlie

commission and was in charge of
the rationing agency here during
World War 1L .

Johnny Miles was governor,
then, Gallacher remembers.

“Barbara at the bank was
secretary of the ratlonmg board,"
Gallacher said.

-~ Art Rolland was the first mayor
of Carrizozo--he was a druggist.
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Stevens.

It was where White's store
stands today.

Stevens later was
sheriff.

The stage in the early days ran

elected

from San Michel below San

Antonio to White Oaks.
“*Nogal was one of the oldesl
towns in the country..there was
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of Las Vegas, a supply point in
those days.

FFarms and homesteads dotled
the area:from Angus up the Bonulo
Canyon. Bonito City was right
where the dam is.

Harkey went to school at Bonito
City.

(C'onstruck and Hubert ran lhc
store - . Bonito City.

Streams used to ﬂovﬁ'moreﬂtha’n
they do now. ~

Harkey worked ten years and
cight months with the El Paso and
Southwestern Railroad. He has a
real estate agency in Carrizozo.

The first eating place in.

(‘arrizozo was run by Jimmy Lee.

It was known as *“The Eating
House."
Along the railroad was the

Western Union office, Star Cafe
(R.A. Walker). pool hall, Joe
Rumero's bar and '*The Ealing
House.”" Mrs. Walker is a curhgnl
day resident of Carrizozo.

Across the street from  the
corner  was  the’
Company saloon. _

A.W. Fail had the Three Rlvers
ranch--Tommy Ryan bofi 1) out
Judge Fall. -
In Corona, the (fnronaﬁzradin
Co. was active. It was first owne
by the Ilfield company.
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Centennial-Carrizozo townsite . . ..

The Carrizozo lownsile was
established by J.J. Hagerman and
Charles B. Eddy under auspices of
the Alamogordo Improvement
Company, according to Johnson
Stearns, president of the Citizens
State Bank and somewhat of a
historian and lifetime resident of
the area.

The townsites of Alamogordo
and Tularosa were established the
same way, all about 1900 or so,
Stearns says

This was the time when the
railroad was being pushed into
this area from El Paso by Charles
B Eddy, figancier and developer
who garhier %ith Hagerman had
eslaklished a railroad line into the
Pecos Valley and who had
developed water resources in the
Pecos Valley

later the Carrizozo lownsite
was sold to Ira O Wetmore The
1 Cibola Hotel was first known as
the Wetmore Building

Old-tmer Frank Fnghsh Sr did

(Continued on Page 4)

who love making music,
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~ «and, president in the early years
“and with Walt Wiggins as track

publicity man and sparkplug,

introduced the world’s richest

horse race, The All-American

Futurity combined purses exceed

- a million dollars.

The names of many breeders
and trainers have become widely
known, such as that of Walter
Merrick and others.

Many people remember when
Cedar Creek was the only ski area
in the Ruidoso area. Now the

Ruidoso area boasts one of the

best ski runs in the west,

.The Mescaleros have turned
ranching into a profitable, big
business. An annual livestock sale
attracts buyers from fear and far.

Theannual quarter horse sale at
the race track is another big
drawing card and has quite a
history.

- Part of the history of Lincoln
County is the' traditional Aspe-
and “Octoberfest” where

county and meoln National

_Forest to see nature's big show’-
turning of the aspens and other .

colorful vegetation--from the
crimson maples to various
shadings of green on the
mountainsides.
" The Maid of Cotton contest is
traditionally held in Lincpln
County at Ruidoso,
Annuaily the pilgrimmage--
although not in Lincoln County-is
made to the grave of Eugene
Manlove Rhodes, noted author,

' nearby. -
The Lincoln. County Fair at'

Capitan=in new quarters after a

fire in recent years-is part of the -

history of the county. Some of the

- best wool in the world is grownon
- Lincoln, County ranches,

‘The late T.J. McKnight and the

McKnight family are part of the .

county's sheep ranching history.

Lincoln County produced a
prime candidate for governor,
former State Sen, Joe Skeen, who
may be a candidate for the U.S.
Senate next go-round.

m—Sawer——who—was—Worl s

Champion Cowgirl in the late

1940s--competing in Madison
Square Garden-is a resident of

- Lincoln County and has extensive

ranch holdings in Lincoln County.
She lives in one of the most

impressive homes in Lincoln =
most

County--probably the
impressive. '

The O Bar O ranch has a_

people drive into the .

apple shed-but which is nov
abandoned,

The Rose quarterhorse ranch at

Hondo is a recent addition~

pointing to the importance of
quarterhorse breedmg and raising
in the area."

Buena Suerte ranch in Roswell
is a multi-million dollar
quarterhorse facility, with Go
Man Go as the stud which
continues to produce winners at
Ruidoso Downs and other tracks,

Businesses outside of meoln_
County have branches now in

" Lincoln County, Ruidoso has two

banks, Carrizozo one, Ruidoso

?_Downs, branch and Capitan, a
“branch, ’

Assets continue to grow,

Ruidoso is and now has been a
convention center for years,

The Inn of the Mountain Gods,
opened recently by the
Mescaleros, provides a fine new
convention facility in
incomparable surroundings,

‘Ruidoso had-a history-of-open- - because : - Lincgln . _County . .
gambling until Gov. Ed Mechem’s  encompasses so much territory.
first term~when open gambling  Lincoln County is big,
was outlawed |

000000000

‘ _prOJect

" colorful history.

Lincoln County in recent years
has been booming-particularly in
the Ruidoso area where building
continues unabashed by anything.

Water development is a part of
the hlstory-startmg with Bonito

Dam™“a long time ago to SUpply )

water for steam locomotives.
Today, Bonito provides water for

various- communities in ‘the.

counties-plus Alamogordo and
Holloman Air Force Base,
‘Alto  recently approved

 formation of a water .and
_samtatlon distriet.. °

Alto Lake is a water storage
 Lincoln - County

N Youngsters-—4-H and FFA-- have
- for decades starred at the New .
Mexico State ‘Fair -and. Eastern -
Fair at -
! Roswell-partloularly in showmg

‘New Mexico State

sheep and'beef cattle. =

~+ . Blue ribbons are common-not

uncommon—for. them
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Addmonal coples of 1hss sectiof on historic old Lincoln County, l |

- All-American race is born

one that eventually became an __ Slotmachinesdotted every drug

developing, healthyo |

-yesidents of Lincoln County, She

store, bowling alley, etc,, in ’

Ruidoso in the “old days” and

some. fabulous poker games were

recorded-at least in memory. .

Thelumber industry always has
been strong in the area. The first
commercial operation in ‘the

- Ruidoso area was a sawmill-soon

followed by a Post Office and
gradual development in the late
1880s.

When artesian wat_er _was
discovered under the floor of the
Pecos Valley, that area was a part
of Lincoln County. .

Water has alw ays has played an
important role in the history-of

Linecoln County—past and present.
- Water provided the growth

ingredient for vast orchards both
in the Bonito and Hondo valleys
and in the Pecos Valley.

1Rough years have reduced the
apple-growing industry--but it
continues to be a part of the
economic base of the county.

. Ranching is the maiustay--

Fifty years from now, its lustory
will include many' things not now
-enwsnoned |
" Even ther, White Oaks and old
Lincoln Town and coal mining will
be a part of recorded and
remerhbered history, The Lincoln
County Water War and its cast of
fabulous characters will never be
forgotten,

. That: saga will be re-enacted this

' weekend in old Lincoln.

History will repeat itself thls
weekend-as it has every August

“since 1940—except for the war

years and just beyond, .

. Billy will ride again--and -
Buckshot Roberts will meet his
demise--along with Tunstall,
McSween and the other
“members of the cast.”

Some people reniember when
Nogal had seven saloons and a
hotel,

They recall the Wingfield store
in Rmdoso and Montie’s Riding
Stables,

They  remember  “steam
locomotives puffing twice a week
into the Capitan area.

They remember the miners

', turning out for dances at White
Oaks on Saturday nights-with

another work day ahlead-Sunday.

They remember the sheep and
cattle marketed through the
Corona Trading Co., the livery
stables, the blacksmith shops.

They remember the roundhouse
at Carrizozo when it was
operational,

History—-there is more of this in
Lincoln County than is recorded,

~ When Smokey the Bear sees his
last days on earth, he will be

‘buried in a new park at Capitan,
When a bear cub 25 years ago, he

became nationally famous when

he was found with scorched paws
in a forest fire in the Capxtan
Mountains.

He soon will be transportéd
from Washington D.C. to Ghost
Ranch in New Mexico where he

~ will spend his final days and

-months.
Then~back home--permanently-

"” o 4; e, L
R
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- Part of picture
New Mexlco Transportatlon McCutchen and he. owned and
operated the Company until his

Company, headquartered in
Roswell, has been a part of
Lincoln County for 40°
providing scheduled bus oervnce to
the area.

Many people get thelr first
- glimpse of historie Lincoln County -
from the windows of New Mexico
Transportatlon buses. . "

New Mexico Transportatmn*'

&ompany, Inc,, is a home-pwned
' New Mexico Corporation, having
beén mcorporated in 1935, with its
General Offices
operatlons located -in ‘Roswell;

- New Mexico. 1975 marks the 40th

anmversary of the Corporation,
Prior t0,1935, the Con

years—- -

and main

pany was
by Paul central locatlon, Roswell

de3th in 1963,

The company operation covers
the eastern part of New Mexico
and portlons -of West Texas,
bounded in general by the major

cities of Albuquerque, Santa Fe.
and Las Cruces, New Mexmo, and .

Amarillo, Pecos and ‘El Paso,

Texas, and . serves other major
‘cities, such as Hereford, Texas,

“Clovis, Roswell, Artesia, Carlsbad
and Alamogordo, New Mexxco and

.intermediate points mcludmg

Lincoln County ,
Major service and maintenance °
of the fleet is accomphshed at one:

"'

The Pine Lodge area of Lincoln
County has quite a history. The
lodge there was famous before
fire destroyed it some, years ago.
Open wooden water troughs
furnished water to summer and
permanent residents in the Pine
Lodge area. There were mine
holes in that area, too.

furnished history, too.. They
remain a strong part of Lincoln
County history. From teepees and
the warpath to the Inn of the
Mountain. Gods “is a long, long
step..

centers on a disastrous flood in

‘destroyed all irrigation and

retardation structures on both the
Ruidoso and Bonito rivers--and
the Hondo=-which is a contmuatlon -
' of both rivets. -
"That flood changed the channe(li_.-
and :

of the Triver at- spots,_ |

. ‘résculptured the ferrain. ~ .

 BertBonnell and brothers at the
. Bonito Valley, the Ballard family
~ others--Coes,
ngflelds Robinsons--all helped

~and . mahy

“make history.

More recent hl'story fmds Peter
Hurd, world famous artist and:
| Iwnfe, Hennette Wyeth Hurd -

»to-Capitam————————————Currizozoy Frances-tGrardenhire

1941-a flood which washed 75
. ‘cabins downstream and which

‘manager;

" Hoff,

4

conies from a famvly “of famois
artist and is renowned as ap
artlst-especlally of portraits,
Robert O, Anderson, chairmap
of the board of Atlantic-Richfielq
Ca. owns a great deal of the lower
Lincoln County along the Hondo
and Ruidoso Rivers,
He has a handsome home and

layout in the Hondo Valleyandhas
been a resident for some 20 more

__years,
He hadhistoswell where he
also maintains a home. The

“Lincoln County Livestock Co, is

part of his operation.

. Carmon Phillips is a pioneer
resident of Ruidoso and has
photographed”the area for many
decades. .

In the old days, travel also was
thick from Lincoln County to Dona
Ana County-a political center of
the ]ate 1880s,

Tularosa and Alamokordo had:
their beginnings when the radroad
was built just after 1900,

Lincoln County stretched way
north almost to San Miguel county
- and to the Pecos River, It was one
of the largest counties in the U.S,

Much has trafspired withinthis |

county. This pre-centennial year .
we look into aspects of history
which are appealing. Most of the
story is here~in these pages, We
wish it all could be here,”

p——-.-—-._-——.—"‘."‘"—

Credits

Many people have
contributed to this edition
containing history of colorful
and active Lincoln County--
pictures, information, etc.

We regret that it was not
possible to interview every old
timer and to run all of the fine
old pictures we obtained.

Persons who contributed
many, many pietures each
include; Della Wingfield Hale of
Chama; Mrs. George Davis of
Portales; Johnson Stearns of
Carrizozo; Nettie Lemon of
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Shaw of Cdpitan; Mrs. Ellen
Queen Cady of Carrizozo;
Loufse (Bonito Lou) Payton of

Nogal and LaLuz; Bertha

LaFave Chavez; Mayor Floyd
Siegrist; U.S. Forest Service,;
and others. _

Each  contribution is
appreciated. They helped make

lendlans!Mescalem:Apachee:w_wﬂle _Bicentennial_ard _historie .

Lincoln County section. .

The News is indebted to the
Neéw Mexico State Planning
Office. Much of the history of,
old Lincoln, town and

' d
Part of the history of Ruidoso - photographs were borrowe

from ‘“‘Lincoln, New Mexico, A
Plan - for Preseérvation and
Growth”’ published by the State
Plannmg Office.

This seetion was produced |

through the combined efforts of
the Lincoln County News staff,
Paul and Eleanor Payton,

Peter -
pressman and prmter,
printer, and -offset’
cameraman; La "Nell Fish,

Compugraphic equipment

operator and Juanita C. ,11, cero,

Compugraphic equ1pment-

operator, and. Eddxe Herrera,

part-'tlme employee

publishers; Al Stubbs, editor and
. Aguilar, - - 1S
‘Frank “

— The new Hondo school t‘eplaoes |

founded 1n the 1920’

g . . . .




o

n m’

Disturbances in Lincoln County
form a general background to the
county’s most notorious outbreak
—of-violence;-known-as-the-Lincoln

./_I’ b 1 o

™ L ~ r
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voluriteered into the Union Army
in 1861, came to New Mexico as a
captain in the California Column
and was_‘mustered out in

. County War, The war really began
~ with the prominent ex-soldiers in
the west side of the county, Most
of these men were foreign-born
and had come into the area with
Carleton’s California Column
during the Civil War. They saw
~ the opportunities for profit in land
and business, and they stayed.
They were newcomers pushing
and shoving to make a place for
themselves; not one of the prin-
- cipal actors in the Lincoln County

War was a native of New Mexico.

Emil Fritzcame from Stuttgart,

Germany. He emigrated to

‘California to look for gold,

N
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Albuquerque in 1866.
- Lawrence G. Murphy was a
native of Wexford, Ireland, who
had once been a divinity student.
He emigrated to America and
joined the army, serving in Utah
and New Mexico. When he was
mustered out of service in 1866, he
became post sutler at Fortl
Stanton. He stayed until 873, but
when charged by the Post Com-
manding Officer with sharp
practice and profiteering, moved
to La Placita (Lincoln) where he
had recently opened a second
store, and where he was Soon
engaged in ~unscrupulous prac-
tices again. Shortly after the move
he took Fritz as a partner in the
business, Fritz died in 1874, and in
1877, the firm became J.J. Dolan
and Company, Murphy going into
semi-retirementon account of
poor health. _ |
James J. Dolan, first one of

Murphy's clerks, then his junior

pariner, now took as a junior
partner John H. Riley, the ran-

cher who had shot Patron. Both of

these men were native Irishmen

. like Murphy. Dolan had received

his discharge at Fort Stanton in
1869; Riley was a small rancher. A
second junior partner was J.B.
Mathews, who had been a Con-
federate soldier and later a far-
mer near Roswell. .Like Dolan
himself, Riley and Mathews had
been junior partners of Murphy’s.

First Murphy and Fritz, then
Dolan, Riley and Mathews, en-

A )

eweomers’ principals

joyed a virtual monapoly of trade

in the area. They charged local
farmers exorbitant prices, and
used the law to harass any farmer
who refused to sell to them. The
“Big Store’’, as their establish-

.ment was commonly called, was
backed by Thomas B. Catron, the

4

'

leader of a group of Republican
lawyers and businessmen known
as the Santa Fe Ring.

The Ring speculated in land and

" directed New Mexican elections

by buying Hispano votes. Catron
was the owner at one time of more
than a million acres, probably the

Ny
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in war ---

largest private land holding in the
history of the United States. He
was from near Lexington,
Missouri, and lived to become a
U.S. Senator and ambassador to
Chile.

The firm enjoyed influence far

(Continued on Page6)

’

An early street scene in Lincoln shows the Bonito Inn on the left and the picket fence that was

there into the late 1930s. The Pe

touse further back are visible on the right.

N~ v

N Y PR TIAA. > Pl AL et
/? K }‘«- e de gk P K P ey L Wy %

\ L

A " We Are A Part

nfield House, the Tunstall-McSween store behind it and the Watson

of Lincoln County’s

WEMBER FEDERAL DEPOSIT
e (NSURANCE CORPORATION

- L3
!
r . - r N .
v . . i
xnl - ) - ]
. -::.; rel o a :

]

Alt

BANK

3 0 "“.l)(-f'S (jet JJ« T\}‘fiqurl',‘llip(j(uinq‘

u 'Im% - »
—_—

)-'/-_/_-/-/-/-/-/-,'/4/-5/-_'/-}-/-;/-/-_/-/-/-_/-/-/-/-w-/-/'-_/v-/v-

WY e o e o e 20

© L RBOIIVRVCACOX

B DOBDIDDRIRRARIIYIVIVRVRNRCRA

P O; Drawer B

" __-’ﬂ

A.C. 505-257-4074

AN R [

]

‘Q:’ - A

o Dra matic Histo ry

and Growth!!

\ P |

g o

. .
L




S

TheJincoln County News Bicsntenniol Issue — Page 4

Carrizozo since 1906.

- Trainmaster

(Continued from Page 3 Johnson Stearns’ mother,

the building. He has lived in ,rrived-in Carrizozo in 1906. Her

e i = A R A R P NP .

e

L]

~ his wife conveyed the property to

e Alexander - S. - Greig, James L. ©

*  pretty well told in a history of Post vacinity.

o

" was killed in 2 mine accident at

—Postmaster—On-May 3, 1882_Ine
name was changed from Galena

cand Mrs, . Jeff T.  Gardénhire,
- dame to Capitan area. in 19i6-:

"~ Capitan on the Half Circle Two
“Bar Ranch where the Gardénhire
- children grew up, Mrs. Shaw was
. 'Franges Gardenhire before her
* .marriage to Shaw--who came to " r -
Capitan in 1928 as chief engineer
~ at Fort Stanton.” - S

in the early days. Her husband g4 they moved here.

White Qaks. .

Johnson Stearns says his father
0.S. Stearns was trainmaster for
the El Paso and Southwestern
after his arrival here in 1910-from
the Erie Railroad in the east.

couple-was married in 1913,

1935. |
The Stear

train went to Capitan in "hose yg99 whep they bought 4 place in
days, where coal was being mined - xo0a) Canvop (now the Oliver
n Salado draw near Coalora. pyrter Ranch).

Capitan was kpown as Gray I johnson Stearns went to work in

those days. Q¢ 1936 for the E] Paso and Southwes-
Granville A.>Richardson first (or;, Railroad when he was a

" secured a patent “on the land clerk, terminal trainmaster and

where CarrizozoisJocaled on July " vreakeman-not all at the same
20, 1901, papers at Citizens State ﬁ}i}ne. |

Bank show, - " But he has been a banker for
* That same year Richardson and many; many years.

, Carrizozo is a railroad town,
the Alamogordo Improvement (0. powever;and it was more soin the
People. involved in, the ;g days.

Alamogordo Improvement Co.

i .

“Almost every old timer had

were directors William - A come connection with the railroad
Hawkins, John A. Eddy. ;;he days of yesleryear.

Bickford, John L. Campbell. grona factor in the economy of

! Charles B. Eddy was a viee- -pinegln County--the Southern

president and-director. * Pacific--outgrowth of the El Paso

Feb. 2, 1907, the Alamogordo ;,q Nertheastern Railroad and
Improvement Co. sold -ihe {grar the EI Paso and

townsite to the Carrizozo Townsite gouthwostern

- ‘Golena - Nogal-

(EDITOR:S NOTE: The story of lead sulfide and was derived from
communities In Lincoln County is mning operations 1p that-
| The name Nogal means
Offices. This arlicle appeared in walnut and came {rom the black
the 1962 »A History of Lincoln walnut trees
County Post Offices,”” written Canyon.
primarily by postmasfers at the From the list of ﬁPo*slmastelzs
time or former postmasters or givenal theend of this hislory it IS
persons closely associated with interesting tonote that Thomas V.
Post Offices.) Henley served lwa different tinits

o and that his father was
NOGAL Postmaster hefore him and his
Roy Harnian brother afterward. Also three of

The Nogal Post Office Was ;4 sepaniel family have been
originally known as Galena pogimagters there. The first
having been established under <p,op. grders were sold at the
that name on November 4, 1880 erips"on (setober 26, 1093,
with George Welliford as ils first ™ yo.c "poarl Stearms who is now

ORI N onger than any ot her
to Nogal. Galena means nalive predecessors. She received

national recognition in 1959 while
she was attending a coiivention of
. the National™ Assdeiation of
Postmasters in Washington, D.C,
At that time Mrs. Stearns .at 76
years of age was the oldesi active
Postmaster in the United States.
gh  _the !
ment age is 70, under an
B obscure regulation, she has been

allowed to continue until she has
{5 years service. In the human
“interest story-written up in &
‘W Washington newspaper she was
¥ termed “The puardian of a little

E et St e—

v Y place by the side of the road’:

where shie dispenses mail from' the
., post office and'supplies from her
L%:  little genelal store and station,

. Mrs, Jack Shaw's parents, Mr.
tensions of largg towns.

ranching nine ~miles' north “of

Colorful
-+ . Lincoln

. _ . first husband worked for  the | i
—The-widow—of -the—late-John-“py, iy ress Pass Railroad, but they TN sy
Gallacher operated the El Cibola  gi4n't like the winters in Colorado, | P 3T

i : bought a placeon ~
Every Tuesday and Friday, the o ponite in 1921 and sold it in,

‘And the railroad today is a

that grew in Nogal

Stearns’ father, Q.S. Stearns, = Ty
. arrived on the scene in 1910. The "{ ¥ — Sauamey

0.S. Stearns was yardmaster ’ f ——
for the railroad unt# his death in % &, -~

(Editor's Note: This writeup

from times past “reveals the
“fldtor" of a portion of Lincoln
County, Boanell’s Ranch at

Glencoe). .

They had a Halloween party at
Bonnell's Ranch up-on the Ruidgso
Creek on the highway to Roswell.

Everybody who is anybody

knows about Bonnells's Ranch, It

was made Tor a Halloween party.
The hig cottonwoods which rustle
their leaves above the ranch house
are gold now and red apples fall

“plop™ on the roofs of the cottagds

where guests slefp. Belween
“plops® you can hear the song of
the Ruidoso down in the meadow
below the house. ’

All the folks from up and down
the ereek came to the party. They
came early and stayed late. They
brought fancy boxes with
Halloween decorations filled with
lunch for the box supper. |

Mrs. Bert Bonnell sat down at
the piano. Wilbur Coe, her
brother, took up his fiddle and
Mrs. Will Tittsworth, her sister,
got out her guitar,

They played *When the Azeleas
Are Blooming White" and all the
old-time melodies.

Under pumpkins swinging from
the ceiling and in the light {rom
burning logs, the dancers did their
stuff, They danced *‘Pul Your
Little Foot” and the Schottishe.
They whirled to the s Y

" Bert Bonnell, whose hair is

white and face is young, called the

figures. He stomped his foot to the

time. He swung the girls around.
When Mrs. Bonnell and Mrs.

Titisworth got tired, their sister-

in-law, handsome Senator Louise

Coe, sat down at the piano. Mrs.
Elzy Perry took over the guitar.
témpulsory

Mrs. Cecil Holley, formerly

Floye Shoémate and her husband,

stopped*in Carrizozo to visit Mrs.

Nettie Lemon and came by the |

News to tell a little history of her
grandfather, William Kahler.
The Kahlers moved to Catrizozo

~Hoffman and Gussie became Mrs. s
~Shoemate., * . .

John Kahler, a br‘ptlier. also

lived in Carrizozo and was a -

contractor who built many of the

- early buildings. His- wife, Dora,
had a millinery shop and is still
. remembered by some for tlhie hats -

she made. *

o

about 1900 from Texas. Mr. -
Kahler had the water rights for. -
| N, the town and hired Mexicans to
k8 Although all mining operations yse wagons to deliver water Lo the
¥ have ceased the little community townspeople. His two “younger
-« is now the home of a number of daughters, Mollie and Gussie
retired people as wel] asthose who grew up in Carrizozo and married
want to get away [rom the there,
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Pictured in Carrizozo in 1920 is the Reily-Lujan store, The man in
the center is reportedly the fathér of Sally Ortiz, long-time resident
" of Carrizozo. Riley is fourth from left; Lujan, right.

Bonnell ranch at Glencoe

An Englishman named Cowper,
staying at the ranch for awhile,
looked on with interest.

“Caome and dance,” said
Senator Lonise Coe when a square

" dance started.

“Oh, 1 cawn’l,” said Senator
Louise’Coe when 3 square fiancc‘:
started.

"Oh, 1 cawn't,” he cried in -
» iﬂﬁ rﬂ},‘frﬂ d._si IT}I}TF ‘WE Q]{ lt#L s

Pretty soon he was in the thick
of it.

(I N

They held the *“most popular

girl contest’ with a big cake as the

' pr'ize.. -

Frank-McCulcheon, agent' for
the bus line, was down from
Roswell to preside al the contest
and the box supper bidding. -

Pretty girls piled up the votes at
a penny apiece in a fund for the
Glencoe Woman's Club.

Mrs. George Coe, 79, wife of the
sole survivor of the Lincoln

Lounty War participants, won the |

cake.

“Folks,” cried McCutcheon,
feading Mrs. Coe proudly around
the dancedfloor, *'she’s lived on the
Ruidoso [or 40 years, prettiest girl
here and only one who told the
truth about her age!” -

Handsome granddaughters
were among those who applauded.

They spread out the supper and
poured hot coffee and apple cider.

) . Py,

TR ) [—. .

Equipnient has improved .m'ighlily since the
days of the 1938 Yellow Conch pictured.
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. - General Offices:*

| RosweiL - Newmexico |

~ Historic T
Lincoln County
, for 40 years!
P -:;".FF‘ILIATED:'
~ % WITHGREYHOUND
~ * New Mexico .
.. Transportation Company '

»

1ne logs bhurned low-and the
clock struck i1wo.

agam,

*"Rlena Escudero and 1 were
from the city and we couldw’t take
it. We left for our cabin in the

» frosty air, dragging our aching

feet. | 5

“Home of the
Rotary Engine “

+ Coupes
4 Sedans

+ Wagons
+ Plckups

*On-the-spot Financing -
High Trade-In Allowances

OF ROSWELL

1205 SE: MAIN
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- “{Continued from page6)
the Chisum family for assnstance

in protecting his property through - -

legal measures, Chisum himself,
however, was still in jail in Las
Vegas, and the other brothers
would not’ commit .themselves,
Tunstall was forced to return to
his ranch with no promise of
assistance,
_ Although his men were ready
and wanted to confront the Brady
posse, Tunstall decided to return
to Lincoln on the morning of
February 18. Four men who
worked for him went with him.
One of them was Dick Brewer.
Another was a young man named
William Bonney, sometimes
called the Kid by reason of his
youthful appearance. -
William Bonney had been born
in Brooklyn and had come west as
a child, his family settling in
Silver Czty, New Mexico. Some
years later; he -was arrested in
Silver City for the theft of a Joad of
- laundry from two Chinese. He
escapeqd from jail by climbing up

~-{he-chimney and went to Camp “Lincoln

- lh!lmm Brady

tyrant, Arizona, There he killed a
man, and escaped again to join the
band of outlaws known as The
Boys. He left them later to work
on a ranch in southeastern New
he found

e e N o e e i el B T L bk ey
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turned aside after some wild
turkeys flushed by the horses.

‘Two of the other hands had fallen - °

back some distance. Tunstall was
riding alone. Mounted men sud-
dently appeared, moving toward
him. Shots were fired and Tunstall
fell mortally wounded from his
horse. Accounts here become
confused, but it is certain that the
mounted men were Brady’s posse,
and that none of them was injured
in the encounter.

Brady was, not surpnsmgly,

disinclined to do anything about

the murder perpefrated by his
posse. Seeking revenge, Dick
Brewer, with eight or ten
cowboys, formed a band called the
Regulators. On March 9 they shot
and killed two members of the
Brady posse whom they had taken
prisoner.

Sheriff Brady told his versiom of
~ the killing of Tunstall in a letter to

Catron, who referred the letter to
Governor  Axtell. Catron
suggested that Axteli ask the
President to send troops into
County to , assist
Terrltorﬂ'ia! officers, and the
Governor telegraphed Brady's
story to Washington.

Axtell was being widely
criticized in the territory tor his
evident indifference to the Lincoln
County troubles, He finally did go
to Lincoln on March 8 and spent
three hours the following morning
making an investigation. Dolan
was with him all this time. After
his visit, he {ssued a proclamation
authorizing the post commander

~ al Fort Stanton, Colonel George

Purington, to assist Territorial
civil officers in keeping the peace-
-which, in essence, meant that the
troops were at the disposal of
Brady, a partisan of the Murphy-
Dolan faction.

On the morning of April 1,
however, while walking down the
streels of Lincoln, Brady and his

‘depity, George Hindman, were

ambushed and killed. The shots
came from behind the adobe wall
surrounding the Tunstall store,
and the killers were evidently
Regulators, among them William

himself in Lincoln and hired on
with Tunstall’s Rio Feliz outlit. In
the months that he worked there,
a strong friendship grew between
the Englishman and the young

outlaw, . ‘
As thie five men rode into Lin-

' t.:oln that day, two of the cowboys
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“Bomey—it—is—not - likely that

Richard Brewer was one of them.

Summoned by George W.
Peppin, a deputy of .Brady's
twenty-five soldiers from Fort
Stanton arrived in town a littie
after noon and began making
arrests, including that of Me-
Sween. He and four friends were
taken to Fort Stanton. Upset by
. the happenings a friend of
~ Chisum’s, Doclor Léversorn, who
had just arrived in Lincoln, wrote
two letters that night to two men

.. who he thought should be apprised

of the growing turmoil. One was
the Secretary of the Interior Carl
Schurz; the other was to President
Hayes, The letters had the
eventual effect of directing
Washington's attention to the
troubles.

On April 4 members of the
Regulators who had been involved

_in killing Brady and Hindman

were at Blazer's Mill, which stood
on private land inside land that
had become the Mescalero

" Reservation. The commissioners

of Lincoln County had offered $200

for the arrest of each of the killers,
and a drifter from Texas named

“Buckshotl’”’ Roberts, who had

| . probably been in the posse that
| killed Tunstall, decided to col]gzct

the reward. The Regulators saw
him riding up to the mill on hlS

__Colanel DUdlc}L-
become commanding officer at

b i s il K AT - - £ :
b g e e e e L
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unstall sla.m'on black da.y

o

Horses'and wagons were the means of transportatlon when this photo was taken in old Lincoln
" town. At left is the Maes house before the addition of the porch, and the two buildings which now
house the Roman Maes (LLa Paloma Museum.) The Paloma Bar and Aragon store can be seen at

right.

" ams=  Roborts is shot

Dick Brewer, recognizing him
as parl of the Brady posse, sent a
man out to try to persuade him to
surrender. When the man did not
come back, another member of
the party was sent lo invesligate.
He found the two talking and
ordered Roberts to pul his hands
up. Robers refused, and was shot
in the stomach. Although martally
wounded, Roberts was able to
drag himself into a doorway from
which he shot and killed Brewer.
Roberts himself died the same
day.

The deceased Sheriff Brady was
replaced by John Copeland, a
McSween sympathizer who was
soon removed by Governor Axtell
on a hint from T.B. Catron. He
was replaced by George Peppin,
an adherent of the Dolan faction
who hoped to use the U.S. Army o
crush McSween and his followers.
He tried to execute federal
warrants against the men in-
volved in the Blazer's Mill fight,
on the grounds that the mill was
part of the DMescalero Indian
Reservation--which 1t was not.
who had

Fort Stanton very sheortly after the
death of Brady, and was friendly
with Dolan, had just received new

.and strigent War Department

restrictions on the use of soldiers
in civil disturbances. The orders
were 50 specific as to prevent his
dispatching troops against Mec-
Sween's men, who would other-
wise, 110 doubt, have been rounded
up. McSween had meanwhile been
released from custody, a grand
jury having found no cause to
indict him on the charges made by
the Fritz heirs. By the night of
Sunday, July 14, he and his fac-
tion--between fifty and sixty men--
had occupied the McSween house,
the Ellis Store and the Montano
Store in Lincoln. Almost half of
those who supported McSween
were native New Mexicans, six of
whom were among fourteen men
who joined him in his own house.

Sheriff Peppin held most of the
rest of the town. He had dispat-
ched several men to the old
forreon; supplies for these men

- were ‘coming from the adjacent

house of Captain Saturnino Baca.
Qutraged because the house was
on his land, McSween sent a note
o Baca ordermg him to vacate the

premises at once. Baca, who had
once been commanding officer at

Fort Stanton sent for protectlon

——————

—_— e o

from the Fort, saying he feared
Yfor his wife and new baby, who
could by no means leave the
house. Dudiey, his hands tied by
the War Decpartment directives,
had to refuse the request, but sent
the post surgeon to investigate.
Both sides seemed to think it
would be all right to place neutral
soldiers in the torreon, but the
matter stayed unresolved.

Peppin sent a depuly to the
McSween house with warrants for
the arrest of McSween and several
of his men. The deputy was fired
on and retreated. Peppin's force
was further strengthened in the
afternoon by the arrival of
cowboys from Seven Rivers. Most
of these were known outlaws like
Buck Powell and Jesse Evans

e ————

Juames 1. Dolan

For three  days the factions
remained barricaded, exchanging
occasional shots. Peppin sent to
Fort Stanton for help, which was
regretffily refused. However, the
soldier carrying the message to
the sheriff was shot at. - Peppin
informed Colonel Dudley that the
shot had been fired by the Mc-
Sween men.

On the basis of this event, a
board of inquiry met at Fort
Stanton and recommended action.
It was agreed Lhat the situation at
Lincoln did justify military in-
tervention, and on July 19, Colonel
N A.M. Dudley entered Lincoln
with a cannon and a Gatling gun
The two groups of McSween men
in the Ellis and Montano stores,
intimidated by the presence of the
soldiers, lelt their positions,
crossed the Rio Bonito and di-
sappeared in the canyons to the
north

McSween . wrote Dudiey a note
protesting the presence of the
soldiers. Dudley sent a sarcastic
answer The Dolan men managed
to fire McSween's house  Mrs
McSween ventured into Lthe street
to plead with Dudley to intervene,
he rudely rebuffed her. He did,
however, give sanctuary to the
noncombatants in the house

Just before nightfali, Mec-
Sween's men vacated the house to
escape the slow-burning fire Billy
the Kid ran out first with two men,
one of whom was instantly shot
The Kid and the other man rached
lhe river and disappeared. Mc-
Sween and the rest, waiting too
long to follow, emerged into a

trap. They offered to surrender
(Continued on Page 8)
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" Very Much A Part. Of The Old West

Roswell, New Mexico
’ " 1201 W. 2nd St.

In The Red Barn
DICK TIGNER, 622-9422
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(Continued from Page5) __ Was, moreover, honestly shocked

* In 1877, however, ‘‘Murphy

__reception by the other partners 4,wnfall, Dolan made veiled

attempts he was -

outside the Bonito Valley. New pgjan was filling his govetnment

Mexico™ Territorial Governor .,,iractto the Mescalero Indians.
Axtell had borrowed $1,800.00 pysenchanted with the firm, he

from J.J... Dolan ' and Co. gyickly became friends with John

Moreover, the firm kept up oy andling mary cases for
distinctly cordial relations with -h_;,:iu_!sn(;;genof"ltnh%é:xslgs.involved

-~ the officers at Fort Stanton. BY .aifle rustling and implicated the

1877, the firm was widely geven Rivers cowboys thought to
suspected of buying stolen cattle- pi"working -for the Dolan-Riley
including Chisum cattle--from gi0n. JOIalFAE)

some of the undesirable elements Shortly after eslablishing his

~among the Seven Rivers cowboys, Rio Feliz ranch, John Tunstall

among whom was the Known aso saw the chance for an honest
outlaw, Jesse Evans, mercantile in Lincoln. Calling
" . upon his early training and family
men" were being challenged by a rgsaurces,. Tunstall opened a store
newcomer. John Henry Tunstall, i, 1:nc0ln He was quick to see the

“a twenty-three-year-old English- |inec of division which were

man and son of a London mer- .reated by his new enterprise. His
chant, acquired property along jyieress naturally coincided with
the Rio Feliz south of Lincoln. In nace in opposition to thé Murphy-
trying t_o.ass_urqeresponsibility for polan faction, Soon a bank was
the family business, Tunstall had 54qeq {o the Tunstall store with

first gone to- Victoria, British, yohn Chisum and Alexander
Columbia, to join'a _.fi[rm'in which :J"chsf:vem liisrtgd a'sd p'grf "d“ lﬁ;

his father had an interest. His \peration, Sensing his impending

was cold, and he begag, to explore threats against Tunstall. With the

Ar'x‘e.xtr_cmely cautioug and begun to feel a loss of customers.
meticulous man, Tunstall became  Gpe particular instance pointed
convinced {rom his inquiries that ,ut the growing unpopularity of
the readiest way to wealth lay in . (e Murphy-Dolan firm. Dick

the livestock business. Although prewer, a well-liked youn
~ he first considered raising she€p, famrer from the area, had bough%
| ‘his property from L.G. Murphy

he s00n decided upon cattle.
~ Through family connegtions and 5,4 Co, The firm had given him
letters of reference, he first al« edit for the supplies he needed
tempted to acquire range in o farming-credit which, at the
California. After several futile prices they paid for his produce,

-TT persuadell to uched him deeper and deeper
travel to New Mexico, Tunstall's into debt,__ McSween advised him

excitement and confidence in q |
| | sl Bl the land and suggested that he
developing vast holdings in this gpq trading wit}ggl‘unstall. When

“last frontier’”, Once in Santa Fe, : | thre
he first tried to buy range held in he did so, ‘he, was threatenec.i by

land grants,  However,
recognizing the commonness of
imperfect titles, the cautious
Englishman decided upon deeded
or homestead land. Finally set-
tling on Lincoln County, he
arrived there in November 1876.

Alexander A. McSween had

T arrived in Lincoln in the spring of -
.Canadian by birth, well-educated, K

“professionally and politically. He

the preceding year, He was
and frankly ambitious, both |

had been admitted to the bar if- -
Kansas not long before Jeaving for
New Mexico with his wife, the
former Susan Hummer, Although
he was placed on retainer lby’ ‘t{nle
antile,  he

.Murphy.-.Dolan__Mercan

" at the shoddy suppljes with which |

®

__pay. for the improvements on it.

other means of vocation and "nrecence of an honest mercantile -
- security for his family,

L
-w

I 4

e 4 &

challeng

. . ‘m
s

The Lincoln County News Bicentennial Issue — Page 6

- n . :
| | . . ] 1 .
1 . : ' o -

' - : '
. . _
LI | 5, T . -+
E e : . ) :
= 3 3 ' "‘_\ . . .

aftay,, .
I y

F d ] -
T N ,
' d . '

‘ﬂ

A rare pidture; this is an early photograph of the Murphy-Dolan store_in old Lincoln, ine

building has been stuccoed since and

second floor.
i

a different porch added, with flanking stairways to the

. ' McSween, Chisum:jailed - -

Dolart, but told him only that he
could have the farm if he would

In October of 1876, McSween'

in the community, Dolan had  phad been retained to collect an

insurance policy for the heirs of
Murphy's deceased partner, Emil
Fritz. When, in August 1877, he
notified the heirs that the money
had been collected, Dolan in-
stantly claimed thre whole amount-
-$7,148.94-asserting that Fritzhad
owed the firm that much., Mc-
Sween disheliéved the allegation
and refused to surrender the
money, _

In December, McSween, Mrs.
McSween and John Chisum

y had rio Valid'titteto™ ‘gtarted "Tor Si. Loliis. They

planned to be gone several weeks
and had let their plans be known.
Dolan went to Las Cruces and
convinced one of the Fritz heirs,
Mrs, Scholand, to sign an affidavit
saying that she belicved McSween

““¥ad no intention of turning over

{he insurance money. Dolan took
the affidavit to District Attorney
Rynerson, the close associate of
Thomas Catron, then U.S, District

~Diolan was a ¢lient of Catron’s and —vonviiree Brady- S is ———
against Chisum, he sent a

telegrain which stopped the
McSweens and Chisum. MceSween
and Chisum were arrested,in Las
Vegas., Chisum was held for
saveral weeks on charges that

certain clients of Catron’s held

court judgemnts against him.
Catron's clients did, in fact, hold

Attorney for New Mexico. As

hisum had heen a partner, but stock, six horses and two mules, .
his name on thenotes had neither  were notheldin co-ownership with -
been written by him nor written McSween, Subsequently, Tunstall

il rrmsas . e e

with his knowledge. McSween lefl ~ had the animals moved 1o his
Las Vegas in cuStody of two Tranch on the Rio Feliz, Not long
deputy sheriffs on January 4, 1878,  after, however, ong of his cowboys
He was permitted to remain in informed him that Brady had sent
Lincoln for two or three weeks to
attend to business matters, Later,
he was taken to Mesilla, since the
papers relating to the Fritz estate
were being held in the district
court. ) |

After an inconclusive hedring,
McSween started back to Lincoln
on February 5, in custody of
Barrier, the deputy who had
brought him to Lincoln from Las
Vegas. When he arrived on
February 10, lie learned that all
his property had been attached as
security by Sheriff Brady, whose
orders from Mesilla were to hold
McSween in custody until bond
was made. Horses and cattle
a%longlng to Tunstall had also

en attached on no legal grounds .
whatever, |

Tunstall appealed to Sheriff
Brady, protesting the seizure of
his property in a case to which he
was not a party. He was able to,

serve a writ of attachment ap-

plying to the animals Tunstall was

keeping there. Tunstall turned to
(Continued on Page7)

-a posse fo the Rio Feliz to try to

soon got into a quar;el'ith Riley
about a bill for legal services, He

. .
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notes issued by an Arkansas ¢
" meatpacking company in which
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N Wayne Adams

@  “TheLandMan“ =~ .|o

Spec-':ia'-lizing In Western
Farms _&- Ranches

- . N
R : . ¥,

Ph. 622-1230 * ‘WilmasJ. Davis

, ~ Ranch Associate ,
.o : L ' . v S e Tk L S AJ«\.’.’,_.M_.W.‘..M I N PN ) Lo e
" This is a picture of the Tunstall:McSween store building in the late 1880s after it was bought by e
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MrSrGeOrgeHDmshlﬁiL’l‘gan& member of the board of county

)r.,, Portales,” has many fond
nemories of Lincoln County
ecause her grandparents were

commissioners, ‘Mr. - and- Mrs.
wingfield reared seven children,
most of whom continued to live in

u o om ameEEs - AL -eno o oees - 0 TUED

and also a member of the first

_school board for a number of

years. Ike Wingfield passed away
in 1954. He alscPserved as county
commissioner.
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County all their lives. Four of the
Robinson children married four of

the Wingfield chiidren.
«Mr. Robinson served as county

surveyor for a number of years in

imong the earliest settlers. Lincoln County. One of the sons | i
She writes that Mr. and Mrs, being ke N. Wingfield, who was “Mr. and Mrs. Ben R. Robinson - the early 1900s. He pa}ssed away in
n IMove | Oct. 29, 1887— moved to New Mexico in 1886 and 1923 and Mrs. Robinson passed

3en R. Robinson moved to the
Bonita near Parsons, N.M., in
1886. ‘They lived in on the Bonita
during the time White Oaks was
on the boom and, Mrs, David says, .
her grandfather ‘‘made weekly
trips to White Oaks in his hack
delivering fresh vegetables from
their garden. Also bulter and
eggs. It would require two days fo
make the trip, He also worked at
the Parson mines,
Robinson cooked for some of the
miners.”

Mrs. Davis, who supplied the
News with several fine old
pictures, writes;

sYour bicentennial edition
would not be complete without

pictures and a few historical facts

the Charles W.

concerning _
R. RoYinson

Wingfield and Ben

settled in Lincoln County in the
early 1880s and remained there
the rest of their lives.

"Mr. and Mrs. Charles W.
Wwingficld came to New Mexico
from Texas and settled on the
Ruidosa in 1884. Mr. Wingfield
was assessor Lincoln County from
1891 to 1893, At that time of his
‘death, April 25, 1910, he was a

"k

bt

and Mrs, .

born at Ruidoso
where he lived continuously and
was the first postmaster of
Ruidoso—having served from 1921
10 1936, was mayor for three terms

and postmaster.

Banking has changed . . .

settled on the Bonita near
Parsons, N. Mex. They were the
parents of eleven children and
most of them lived in Lincoln
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believe in hélping

The old Parsons Inn which burned not too long ago is pictured as
it appeared many years ago. At the time J.M. Rice was proprietor

Members of Bank Securities

New Mexico

away in 1943.
‘They lived in on the Bonita
during the time White Oaks was

on the boom...”’

Naon CH e
N\ ehn

AT i W R

oot Y

g open a

(Old Exchange Bank)

Originally in White Oaks.

CITIZENS
STATEL
BANK

Mr. and Mrs. Ben Robinson of
Bonita (Parsons) are shown in an
early day photograph.

MANCHESTER
Roy Harmon ‘

The Manchester Post Office had
an extremely short existence.
Opened on June 10, 188l with
william L. Cornwell as
postmaster it was closed October
of the same year when lrris W.
Blood was the second ang last
postmaster.

The story goes that a group of
people settled this spol with the
purpose of competng with White
Oaks as a town site. In addition to
the Post Office they proposed to
bank. They even wenl 50
far as to have a shipment of
money sent in for the bank and
when the shipment arrived it had
been packed in a keg. Everyone
gathered 'round to see the keg
opened and much to their dismany
they found a few silver dollars on
top with only nails underneath. So
the bank never was opened and
the post office lasted only four
months.
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(Continued from Page?)
. and were approached by Robert

Beckwith, one of Peppin’s
deputies, and three other men,

Someone in the McSween party
fired, and Beckwith fell. His
companions immediately
returned. the fire, and McSween
fell dead across the'dead body of
Beckwith. Al the rest of Me-
Sween's companions were also
shot dead, except for one man who
lay badly wounded. The Peppin
men looted Tunstall’s store, and
sang and danced in the streels of
Lincoln.

After this bloody encounter, the
. Lincolp County War began slowly
to abate. As McSween was dead
and his faction scaltered, it was
evident that the Dolan people had
won. Still, the spate of vzolence did
not cease immediately.

For some weeks thre were
rminor clashes between Dolan and
McSween partisdns. Mrs. Me-

colony on Chisum's’ range,
threatened by the Seven Rivers
cowboys for having remained
neutral, decamped for Las Vegas.
Shortly thereafter. Chisum.
himself, and several other big
cattlemen as well, began to
remove all .their _stock from
Lincoln County The unsettled
..State of the area attracted new

..
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to go for
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- drifters _fro_m Texas, .a_nd t.here
was indiscriminate robbery and
mayhem. - In December, some
McSween men, perhaps headed by
Billy the Kid, reoccupied Lincoln,
while Dolan and some followers
hiirried to Fort Stanton for
protection.

Meanwhile President Hayes,
having read the letters written
‘earlier by. Leverson, and
receiving reports from a special
federal agent in Lincoln, deter-
mined to remove Gavernor Axtell.
He replaced him with a regular
Army general named Lew
Wallace, who had orders to end
the troubles in Lincoln County,
Wallace issued a proclamation of
amnesty to persons who had been
involvedin the Lincoln Couty War,

Trying to reclaim some part of
her husband'’s share of the Tun-
stall estate, Mrs, McSween hired a
Jawyer named Houston Chapman.
Chapman was harrassed by
_ soldiers from Fort Stanton, and

was finally, according to the most

reliable evidence, shot and.killed
by Dolan in a quarrel., When
Governor Wallace heard this news
he came down to Lincoln, put
Dolan under arrest for the murder
of Chapman, and melt secretly
with Billy the Kid to arrange his
pardon in exchange for testimony.
Colonel Dudley was tried in the
civil courts for his failure to
protect life and property and for
conspiracy with the Dolan faction,
and acquitted. Dolan was tried for
the murder of Chapman, and

- acquitted.
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scenein the early 1900s, The middle house is the'Salas housé; just

house, -
in 1884. In the same year, Chisum

died of a tumor. Dolan lost his

store to T.B. Catron by mortgage
foreclosure and went into
territorial politics for twenty

-year§, dying.in 1898, John Riley
returned to ranching and
prospered; he died in 1916. Susan
McSween remarried in’ 1884 and
lived until 1931,

. w'?

Billy the Kid, meanwhile, ap- - ¥

proached Chisum with a demand
for $500 in paymerit for his ser-
vices to the Tunstall-McSween-
Chisum faction. He pointed out
~ that he had fought the cattle

theives led by Jesse Evans, who

had stolen Chisum cattle. Chisum
refused to pay anything, not losing
his usual composure even under
threats. The Kid wavered, put
away the pistol he had drawn, but
swore that he would steal
Um-Ss r“!tﬂe_ L0 flet what was

P SR INCSURRO. -
SRS S R RY
Pat Garrett T

Montano house (later the Garcia house) in this Lincoln street

beyond itds the James Ramsey

Capitan Townsite

The Capitan townsite ap-
parently changed hands in 1911,

according to a newsletter

published by -the officers of the '

Lincoln National Forest dated
OctoYer, 1911, - °

The item in .the newsletler
reads:

*It is rumored that the Cap:tan
Town Site has changed hands and
that Mr. P.G. Peters now has
control, in any case town lots have
advanced (esking price) about 100
percent, It is hoped that the
arrangements made with the
former owner in regard to a
building site for Supervisor’s
headquarters will not be affected.
In other items in the newsletters,

the following - news  was tran-

__smittcd:

» --Mr., R.R. McPherson is
erecting a building in' Capitan lo
be used by him in conducting a
general mercantile business,

-The burro which met its death
through accident while being used

by Forest Service in constructing

- the north Capitan Trail was paid

for by the Forest officers in
charge of the work.

-Forest Assistant Thos., F
MeceCullough, of the Alamo Forest

taken up with Moo W.Co Me-
.Donald. However, Mr. McDonalki
(territorial governor) is so busy
campaigning that it may take

some ume to Beta l'eply from Tum e

-The barn and stoék shed and
corral at the Baca Ranger Station
is prdetically completed. And
work on the others at the different
stations which has been delayed
on account of the lack of a carp-

-enter will commence after the
election November 7.

-0On account of the heavy stand
of gamma grass over the entire
Forest the fire danger will be
considerably augmented and a
sharp lookout will be 1mperatwe.

Lincoln Forest personnel in

_October of 1911 were as follows:

James H. Kinney, Forést

Supervisor, Capitan; James A.
Seolt, Lee R, York, John L, Bryan,
Jr., forest rangers or assistant
forest rangers, all of Capitan;
Ralph 1. Bateman, assistant,

*Glencoe; John R. Coleman,

assistant, Lincoln; John V.
Hobbie, assistant, Richardson,
N.M.; Lewst Mum.ell assistant
ranger, Holloway, NM
~jamin F, Naborus, ass:stzmt
Progresso. N.M., and Joseph

Ben-

' owed him. He'was 45 good as his -
~word. From 1hi5 time he pursued

thelegendary career of crime that

led him to death at the hands of

Sheriff Pat Garrett in 1881,
Garrett was elected sheriff of
- Lincoln County late in 1880, and
captured the Kid and two ac-
complices on December 2i,
.surrounding them in an aban-
doned -house ™4t Stinking *Spri
twenty«hve miles from Fort
Sumrer, A change of venue for the
Kid had been standing for two

years, ever since he had arranged’

with Wallace to be tried. He was

__taken to Mesilla, there tried for

~ BONITO CITY
Aileen Lindamood |
' (EDITOR'S NOTE: The story of
communities in Lincoln County is
pretty well told in a history of Post
rOffites—This-article-appear ed_in__ the White Mountain District

the 1962 A History of Lincoln
County Post - Offices,” written
primarily by postmasters at the
time or former postmasters or
persons -closely .associated - thh
Post Ofl'nces )

/

, Amencan &
Mexman

.
b
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~ -- 1ooo w. 2nd

the killing of Sherilf Brady and

-found guilty. He was brought back

- to Lincoln to be hanged, but killed

his two guards and escaped. Pat

Garrett found him at the house of
Pete Maxwell at old Fort Sumner

around mldnlght of July 43, and

shot him dead in a dark bedroom
The Jesse Evans gang headed

" back to the Big Bend coutry after -
the War. ‘There. they were scat-

tered by- Texas Rangers. Evans. .
“himself landed in the penitentiary,

" escaped after a year and a half

and disappeared. Juan B. Patron, -
~ the probate clerk and leader of the
“native New Mexicans, was- afraid:
to stay in Lincoln after the deathy
“of MeSween., He moved to Puerto
_de Luna, where he was shot and

-
»
o
_o
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killed by a drunken Texas cowbﬁy‘“‘“‘“

town about 1880, was located in the
widest part of Bomto Canyon, the
site of which is now covered by
Bonito Lake. When Chas. Metcalfe

 was appointed postmaster August

24, 1882 its population was around
500 inhabitants, |
Lewis W. —Bourne became

.was a great grandfather of Mrs.

Crr e will 'make - a--plantingorecons
-najsance of the

Lincoln com-
mencing November 1, Mr. Mc-
Cullough will inspect the entire
Forest giving particular attention
to the burned over area on the
summit of the W} te Mountains.
~~The Supervisor (James H,
Kinney, Capitan) made a trip over

rﬁ:ﬁﬁtly“with‘“ﬁangerelaeyanmand

“found  the range condition ex-

cellent,
-The matter of cooperation in

., the construction of the Block

postmaster February 12‘ 1894 and B

. Blye Skinner Cox who stlll lwes at

Nogal .

The incident most remembered
-about the town was 'the tragic
Mayberry murder there. The

~entiré.family was wiped out: thh .

| the exception of one daughter. -
~The  office was" dlscontmued-‘
J anuaeralmlsllﬂn the '
sent to Parsons. § -

2 o b

- Ranch-telephone - ine has been

P 0. Box 1633

.Roswell, N. M. 88201
: Phone (505) 622 1321

P 0 Box FF

Las Cruees, N. M 88001
Phone (505) 524 3633

B RESIDENT]AL
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h;waur, assintants-White-Oaks-

L+

Sept. 22, 1900 A
(White Oaks Eagle)
.'Six delegates selected- to
attend the county Republican
convention at Lincoln: Chas. D.
Mayer; T.W. Heman; Wm, E,
‘Blanchard; R.E. Lund;
Serranco, Marshall St. John,
it Delegates
county convention from Lincoin:
Capt. Baca, Sepio Salazar, Juan
de la Garza, Manuel Gonzales
Porfirio Chavez, Geo, W. Pippin,
_H. Moeller, Cleto Chaves.

‘Bonito City, a sﬂver mmlng llllllllllllllllﬂllllIllll‘“

Bmlders Block

Jose

1. the Democratic

1
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Whlte Oaks memories good, bad

Mrs. Nettie Lemon, who came

to White Oaks in 1887 w:th her sea

brol:h,er was among the victims.
The mine was the famous

captain father and her mother and

Homestake,

Samoa. He married the daughter
of missionaries there. Mrs.
Lemon's brothers and sisters

customers-10 cents a quart—-xmm
a wagon.
Mrs. Lemon recalls when the

where he was asseyor. White Oaks
produced four and a half million
dollars in gold in 20 years or 8o of

family in"a covered wagon, has were born in Samoa except for ~ White Oaks stage was robbed of activity.
‘many fond memories of the odd But most memories are one, gold bullion which was on the way ~ Parker wgote: “The forces of
- mining town where she grew up pleasantof life in early-day White Her father was born in Scotland to the mint at Denver. The good and evil-never did battle it

and was graduated from high
school,

She also has some memories
that aren’t good at all. Mrs,
Lemon resides in Carrizozo and
has since the turn of the century

Oaks and later Carrizozo.
- When the family moved to
Carrizozo in 1902, ‘“there were
only two or three houses here,”
Mrs, Lemon recalls.

Mrs. Lemon lives in Carrizozo

in 1835 and ran away to sea at the
age of 14. He had his own sailing
vessel,

He did not leave Samoa until
1875, living in Virginia, New
Orleans and Texas before arriving

robbery occurred at the Taylor
Station overnight stop in the
Malpais where Louis Nalda’s
ranch is now.

She recalls the posse leaving
White Oaks--but the robbers

out in the saloons and on the
streets of White Oaks. Gamblers
and goodtime girls never cut
much of a figure there.

“It was, in truth, a pretty
civilized place with churches and

except for a time spent in Kansas, now with a niece, Mrs. Ellen in White Oaks in 1887 via covered  apparently were never caught. schools, literary societies and
One of the unpleasant memories. Queen Cady, who was born in wagon. White Oaks social life centered dramatic  clubs, educated
for Nettie Lemon was the death of White Oaks in 1902, The wagon trip was not without  around churches and church immigrants from the east,

her brother in a mine accident at
White Oaks. Miners had set three
dynamite charges, and only two of
ﬁ;fem apparently were heard to go
off. :

The miners fmally figured that
two charges had exploded at the
same time-accounting for the
three, 3

They were mlstaken.

When the miners went into
-ycheck on what the dynamite had
;accomphshed the third charge
went off dunng dnllmg Her

b s L

Mrs. Cady’s father, Ed Queen,
was a miner who took over the
mines about 1902 with two
partners, Allen Lane and D.L.
Jackson, Negro, who lived deep
into his 90’s at White Oaks.

Queen and partners sold out to
eastern interests apout 15 years

“after they took over th'e mines—

which had begun to fade by just
after 1900.

Mrs. Lemon’s father, John Lee,
had been around the world several

times and finally settled in

incident. Almost all of the Lee

livestock died after drinking
alkali water along the Pecos near
Carlsbad.

Captain Lee first ran a dairy in
White Oaks, then a meat market
and finally the ‘Little Casino”
saloon and the ‘““Headlight’’ saloon
in Carrizozo. |

Mrs. Lemon's first job was a
tedching position on the Block
Ranch near Capitan in 1904. In
1906 she moved to Carrizozo to
teach, but only for nine months
after which she became

n " associated with the old-Exchange
¢ Bank--Carrizozo’s first bank
3 located in what is now the Masonic

od (' building.

She worked at the bank until she

* married R.E. Lemon in 1911. He

was cashier for the El Paso
Southwestern railroad.
Lemon went to work for the

i* Wildeat Leasing Co. in White Oaks
¢ and later kept books for the power

plant, the mine apd the White

Oaks Mercantile Co. there.

They moved from White Oaks to

groups and group ‘‘sings’’ Mrs.
Lemon recalls. White QOaks also
had a choral club. Teachers were
sophisticated—-from the east. Life
was on a pretty high plane.

Baseball was a major White
Oaks sport. Mrs. Lemon played on
a girls’ team which ‘“‘oftena beat
the boys.’’

Buggy racing for adults was
another sports, along with horse
racing. Mrs. Lemon says she and
her brothers and sisters spént
many long winter nights listening
to Captain Liee and their mother
tell of their days in the Samoan
Islands.

She remembers a favorite tale
about her adventurous father,
~ The incident occurred after the
German takeover of the islands
from England.

' The German flag was flown
over the English flag.

Captain Lee, “after a little
partying,”’ Mrs. Lemon said, took
it upon himself to climb the flag
pole and pull down the German
flag. He ended up in jail that night,

gentlemen and ladies who knew
their way around in the world.

‘“It was not Cambridge,
Massachusetts, of course, but
neither was it Bridger’'s Wells or
Poker flat. The boys went off to
college and came back to marry
the local girls.” It sounds almost
too normal and healthy to be true.

Historian Morris Fulton of
Roswell wrote: ‘“The people of
White Oaks came mostly from an
Eastern environment that had
made them sensible and law-
abiding. Saloons, gambling halls
and other means of recreation and
stimulation...they would not
tolerate; but they did not intend to
let White Oaks become a
rendezvous for ‘murders, horse
and cattle theives, and escaped
convicts...'”’

White Oaks began to fade after
two fathers put such a high price
on land wanted by the railroad to
put a spur into White Oaks that the
railroad instead went to Capitan.

Morris, in fact, says White Oaks
committed suicide because the

Carrizozo in 1916, never to_leave. but was rescued by his missionary railrodd was badly needed to haul ’j
' Mrs. Lemon retalls making the father-in-law. ore from the mining community. i
. milk run in White Oaks with her White Oaks of Mrs. Lemon’s But White Oaks lives on—-a few T
i father. Milk was delivered to the Years there was something else. residents still reside there. ;
mines in 10 gallon cans and pints Morris B. Parker tells about it But the population is nothing
" and quarts were dipped out to his book ‘‘White Oaks.”” Parker like the 2,500 it was in its heyday |
' tells of his years in White Oaks when Nettie Lee was a student
there in the same class as Bill
GOld ore found Gallacher. But his story is another
‘ one.
(EDITOR'S NOTE: The story of the Ozane Stages, brought the
communities in Lincoln County is mail. This service was a great ‘
pretty well told in a history of Post . improvement over mail delivery
B Offices. This article-appeared in before the post office was opened.
g thc 1962 “A History of Lincoln According to the story a passerby
' e —Coumty—Post—Otfices~—written—would bring the mail. The letterw. i Cand
{ primarily by postmasters at the would then be lied loosely on a [ﬂ SR
& time or former postmasters or burro and the burro made to OOOQ
i persons closely associated with gallop down the trail strewing ' rew

Post Offices.)

| . . X
T ‘:;'(:;1}‘:;2::{: after seventy-four years marked
. " ' '  In the year 1879 a traveler to the end of a community which
5 ‘ California rested from his journey Started as one of the most
N | > ‘for a brief time with two PromMISING In New Mexico. White FOOTWEAR
nY. o v, S0 S * . prospectors-who were camped at Qaks is rich in legend of the west. ‘ OF
,ﬁ,wl L White Oaks Springs belween Emersgn Hough wro.te ,? novgl X
el M Patos and Carrizo Mountain. [n 2P0t it and called it “‘Heart's DISTINCTION
B oo : e order to plot his westward course Desire’’. To many it was just that X FOR
.. | " NettieLemon today ~thetraxeler walked from camp to 'and to a great many others it had
Ce T : - ‘ brought only heartache. THE ENTIRE
. | -y ' v adistant high ridge. On his wdy he
- ﬁaﬁ?’ W@{i@g%@ % sat down to rest and while sitting . FAMILY
| - ‘ r there picked up some rocks he APril '2'1399AT THE HOTEL |
| thought were pretty and put them ?::;’:IX;HER Yo A A AR Ak
in his pocket. When he returned to ** {1900 White Oaks Eagle) )
camp he showed the rocks to his : , .
hosts who recognized the rocks as _Hugh Strong, Cam_zh?lzc.). ;”::I WE SALUT E o
gold ore. They asked to be shown’ Howell, ANngusl' DIJ\I M an LINCOLN
the spot where the rocks could be Eakers, Noga | Paca. Jomn COUNTY
SR 'H\‘C‘ found and the next morning while Freudenthal, Ei P‘??O'i\ﬂ 0 hn
' | the traveler proceeded on his way FPoston, Carrizozo; F.1.- Marsh, AR AR
Clarence Moulto,

the prospectors were busily
staking. claims. This incident
resulted in the White Oaks gold
rush and the establishment of the

spring a hn M. McCutcheon
was the fi stmaster. A stage
line from n Antonio, New

S

Mexlco to Roswell, operated by

ML .
P

letters for the miners to pitk up.
The closing of the Post Office

0.A.C.M.; Lum Bifield, Nogal,
Liv Rrannum, Ranch; Henry
Hall, Block Ranch; R.L. Ronsom,

hotels: Hotel Gallacher and Hotel
Ozanne.)
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Ph. 623-5121
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2000 WEST SECOND ST : A AN. Price, Jicarilla; Jas. ‘Roswell,
post office, June 4, 1880. : |
RqngE;L‘ng 216848201 The White Oaks Post Office was wooqlan(?1 Chas, CaETlIJJbe“s New Mex'co 3
- named for the trees at the old Carrlzpzo, F.Hi ngne, aso; 2
J.H. Lightfoot, Capitan; S.I. Bean, 107 Weslt
New York. (There were two McGaffey
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. The é1d Parsons Mill high above Bonito Lake and before Bonito -
Lake is pxctured in its heyday The htlls are much more forested’

today.

B
A :_‘ .

R

Mr. and Mrs. J M. Rloe nnd daughters, Helemand Charlotte are
pictured on the,steps of the Parsons Inn (Hotel). Mr. Rice was
proprietor of the hotel and also was the postmaster~the Post Office -

' located in the hotel. The photograph was taken in the early 1900s--

high up Bonito Canyon.

The Wingheld sisters are shown in 1924 outside the Whipple Cafe =
‘in Ruidoso with their teacher. Pictured are Howard and Ted
Presser, Harold Lafferty, "Dude Browning, Della and *Opal
ngheld and -the teacher, Mrs Ted Browning.

- Office.

communities in Lincoln County is
pretty well told ina history of Post

* -Offices, This article appeared-in -~

the 1962 ‘*A History of Lincoln

‘County Post” Offices,”” written

primarily by postmasters at the

. 4{- time or former postmasters or
persons closely associatéd with

Post Offices.)
PARSONS
Dorothy R, Parnell
" Parsons, nestled at the foot of
Nogal Peak in the heart of the
Sierra Blanca Mountains, was a
bustling little community about

the .turn of the century, The
promising gold miines attracted

" many investors from the east and

other sections of the country.
Extra revenue derived from the
mining activity was a boon to the
ranchers of the area, as well as to
the outsxders that flocked in Ior‘
work, °

A building contractor from

—Chicago, -John_M. .Rice, having

faith in the mines built a large
three story rooming house for the
convenience of the stockholders

when they came to visit their mjne

and moved his family-to Parsons,
During the many years Mr, Rice
was postmaster the postoffice was
located in one corner of the long
dining room of the Inn.

Among the famous persons that
were guests at the Parsons Inn
were author, Mary Roberts
Rinehart, and a Mr. Studebaker,
one of the manufacturers of the
famous wagon by that name.

The following quotation is taken

,,’ from a-letter written by Helen

Rice, daughter of the postmaster,

- who row lives in Tularosa, New

Mexico, |
“I have looked up some of

- father's old papers hoping to find

some data about the Parsons Post
I don’t know ‘who
preceeded Parsons, or when the

office was established, Mr, E.S..

Parsons may have been the first
but I don’t know. |
“Father came to ‘Parsons in

father had inherited the mine

[rom a brother who was drowned °
. in*a lake near Las Vegas, New

Mexico. l

“When I came to New Mexico in
190¢ Father was postmaster and
served until the summer of 1923.
We moved to Lincoln after
. _Father's .stroke and_he died in__

'L , | ,Tgust “T helped take care of the —

Pa r|s Exhlblhon

et $ .
‘tWHI’I‘E OAKS EAGLE, Jan
. 22,1900) |
| Prof 'J.C. Carrera, ‘who is

" collecting New Mexico's Mineral
‘Exhibit for.the Paris Exposition, -
. says a number of good _things .
" about the White:Oaks ‘country....
“At present the town of White .

" Qaks is somewhat quiet, but the"

In one mmmg e){hlblt at’ the Par g

exposition will be seen the most -
remarkable piece of gold ore yet

brought from -the bowels of the
earth through the ingenuity of -

man, -A p1ece of gypsum, not
* unlike a piece of ice penetrated by
“wires of vxrgm gold, makes this

“the most unique speclmen of gold
ore ever seen anywhere.”

office most ot' the time he served
‘and after his health failed. We

- turned it over to Lizzie Grafton
a when

we .left but it was
discontinued a short time later as .

 they sold their home and movedto

Angius.

‘“‘When we came in 1802 mail
was delivered by. Mr. Bingham
‘horse back from Angus. Later
came from Nogal by horseback,
one of three McDaniel brothers
delivering over the hill. They were

. followed by Marion Hust. After -

autos came into use, Jim

Y Gatewood brovght mail in‘a small’

car around Nogal Hill and Capitan
" Mesa, down Crockett Canyon to*
the Bomto and up the -valley to
Parsons. {The mail route from

_Carrizozo to Roswell had been -

‘established by that time and
Parsons’ mail was left and
collected at Nogal.

“After the post offxce ‘was -

;_% m_‘._%mt)ldudbomme there is producmg__

handsome returns for 1ts owners‘

L
; Y

v

" (EDITOR’S NOTE: The story of

J ﬂ- 10

| of ES was postmaster then. The

Wﬂelwered—%carne 1
suppose from Nogal, to the few
families left in the upper Bohito
valley, after most'of them sgld out
to the Southern Pacific Railroad
Company, but that delivery was
dlscontmued

- “During the early years at
Parsons, Mr. H. Consbruck
(Herman) was postmaster at

usy town

| later that Qﬁ]ce W3
the Parsons Post Office, and Mr,

Consbruck.went to Parsons and

helped Father with the mail,”
High operatlng cost closed the -
mines in early 1920. The building
that was once the Inn is about all
that is left of the once busy
community. |

Blazer postman

(EDITOR’S NQTE. The story of
communities in Lincoln County is

preity well told in a history of Post

Offices. This article appeared in
the 1962 “A History of Lincoln
‘County Post Offices,” writlen

primarily by postmasters at the’

time or former postmasters or
persons olose}y .associated with
Post Offices.)

"SOUTHFORK .
CORRINE McNATT'
At the close of the Civil War, ex-

8 —goldiers-discharged—from-the--F - ¥
years. These wero troubled hmes,
the Lincoln County War was in -

various units of the Union Army,
particularly The California
Column, began to settle in New
Mexico. Some of these men
drifted into this area and began to
farm small patches of ground and
trap for their living, They thus

created a peed for postal service

to market ‘the furs they lrapped.
The first Post Office established in
what is now Otero County was
located on the South Fork of the
Rio Tularosa, now named Nogal
Canyon. The official address of
this Post Office was South Fork,
New Mexico. At that time it was in
Lincoln County. The nearest town
with a post office, and the postal
distribution point for South Fork
was the settlement of Mesilla on
the Rio Grande, one hundred and
twenty miles to the west, Once a
month a mail carrier made the
long, hard trip from Mesilla to
South Fork with the mail. He
traveled on horse back and if the
mail was heavy he led a pack
horse. There is no record of the
name of the fxrst manl carrier. A
Mr, Rockwood H. Bla ewas the-
first Postmaster,

In the year 1866, when the Post
Office of South Fork was

established there were a score or

mfore of these ex-soldiers living
within a radius of some fifty miles
of South Fork. A few of these
fellows could read and write but
most of them could not and it was
a part of the Postmasters’ duty to

write their letters and read their *
mail, to them.

In 1874, the,South Fork Post.
Office was moved to Blazer's Mill
and Dy. J.H, Blazer sewed as

full swing and Blazer’s Mill and
‘the South Fork Post Office were

the scéne of at least one bloody *

battle of that war,

Sometime during the year of
1885, the Post Office was moved
again, Thistime to the home of the

Indian Agent, and re-designated

Mesoalero, New Mexico,

{
July 19,1900
(Headline)
“ROCK ISLAND COMING
THROUGH WHITE OAKS!

To Connect Immediately

Nov. 22, 1900

(Headline)

“GIGANTIC ENTERPRISE FOR
LINCOLN COUNTY

The Bethlehem Steel Company

closed and mail handled through -

R

Purchases Thousands of Acres. |

Aug. 23,1900
{Headline)

“Coal production in meoln
County -88,060 Tons"
WHITE OAKS EAGLE .
May 14,1900 tlloadlme) -

~THREE-RIV :
| A~POST OFFICE

DURHAM’S
LINCOLN

&MERCURY
~INC.

Billy Durfiam

-
-

LR

| .90] S, Maln

o : Res. Phone 622-7614 : s
) FACTORY AUTHORIZED
- SALES & SERVICE

USEDf'CARS
R & Roswell

g 6‘23-2630 I

was postmaster I believe the mad

____discontinued while. Lizzie Graften . .. B
(What happened to the sample"). T




CAPITAN

----Ann Earlingand Oleta V. Cloud
* Capitan, New Mexico i§ located
in the mountainous region of
Lincoln County, 70 miles west of
Roswell and 20 miles east of

“-,_ :_._';:“.\ - i o .
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Carrizozo on Highway 3tu, at an
elevation of 6,350 feet. |
Before Capitan acquired its
name in 1900, the town was called
Gray, so named for Seaborn T.
Gray who owned most of the land
in the area, and who also was the

r .
. o= d.
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““This 16 the Tiisworlh home as it appeared after tonstruction in
1908 in Capitan. Jack Shaw and wife, Frances Gardenhire Shaw,

purchased the property 18 years ago. It remains a beautiful,
spacious old home--now surrounded by trees and shrubs.

(EDITOR'S NOTE: The story of

" communities in Lincoln County is

pretty well told in a history of Post
Offices. This article appeared in
the 1962 **A History of Lincoin
County Post-~Offices,” writlen
primarily by postmasters at the
time or former postmasters or

_persons_closely associated with

 Post Offices.)

HOLLYWQOD
Mable Wimberly
The Hollywood Post Office was
established May 22, 1926. George

. A Friedembloom was the first

Postmaster and the office was
located about where Hollywood
Inn is now (1961). Friedembloom
operated a store and had come
from Hollywood, Florida so that
hame was given the office, Had he

Hollywood
highway. When Miller retired in
V. Young was
appointed and the office had
She
moved it to a very small building
thirty
boxes. New equipment was hard
to come by as those were the days
following World War I1. In 1947
"Mable Wimberly became a clerk
in the office and when Mrs. Young
resigned two years later, Mrs.
wimberly became Postmaster.

From those days of ‘‘home
made".equipment and heat with a
great
improvement is seen in the smart
modern office with its bank line
equipment and pale green walls.
dedicated
September 6, 1958 and replaced a
building which had been rendered

1946 Alorie
advanced - to third class.

where there were only

kerosene  stove a

This office was

came the office was moved t6 the

R

foreseen the future with 14 Post
Offices in the United States by the
same name he might have named
it differently. There are still 13
post offices with this name in the
country.

In 1932 E.E, Miller became
postmaster and moved the office
{o the Miller farm just east of the
present highway. As the

iunity.grew and the highway

useless wiien The highway Tame ¢ 5itan Mounfains, this area was
within one inch of its front door,
Grown to second class the office
émploys three clerks beside the
Postmaster and copes with much
missent mail which résults from
so many offices bearing the same
name. Not many celebrities in
dark glasses stroll the streets of
Hollywood, New Mexico, but this

patrons well

e

of Capitan in the late teens.
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e Gray first pdsi

only postmaster while the town
was under the name of Gray. He
served from August 20, 1894, when
the post office was first
established, until October 11, 1900,
when the town of Gray was
renamed Capitan,

About 1899 to the north and west
of Capitan one and one half miles
was the bustling coal mining town
of Coalora. The town started with
tents for living quarters and one
tent was used for a school. Later
houses were built by the Phelps

“ Dodge Coal Company who at that

time operated the coal mines.
About a year later the railroad
was built to Capitan and was used
principally to haul coal to
Carrizozo, New Mexico. Many
runs ‘were made both day and
night moving coal from several
mines in and around Coalora.
;Because of a greater quantity of
coal owned by Phelps Dodge
elsewhere, the Coalora mines

~wererclosed most of the buildings

were moved to Dawson, New
Mexico. A few buildings that were
moved to Capitamrafter the mines
were closed about 1905 still stand.
The office was discontinued July
31, 1505.

The records show, that there
were three post offices north of
Capitan Mountains, Encinosos,
Richardson and Spindle. Encinoso
was established on May 25, 1915
and discontinued on March 31,
1920, with Postmasters Samuel
Farmer, Rumalde A. Duran and
Martiniano Lucero serving during
that period. The Richardson office
was established on April 3, 1895
and discontinued on October 31,
1912, with these postmasters
serving: Andrew M. Richardson,
Joshua H. Steele, Henry A. Scott,
Oliver B. McKissick, Lloyd Taylor
and Samuel G. Bearn. The Spindle
Office was established on
February 13, 1917 and
discontinued April 15, 1920, with
the following  postmaslers
serving: Eliza M. Spindle, David
k2. Spindle, John J. Mills and J .P.
Pendergrass.

Upon the discontinuance of
these three offices north of the

and is now being served by a Star
Route from the Capitan office.
FFor many years the only
conveyance for carrying mail was
horse drawn buggies and hacks
and not untii 1912 or 1913 was any

~mail transported to the Capitan

office by automobile.
Not always was the post offjce

__housed_in a building of its own.

Many times patrons have been
able to get their mail and buy their
dry goods and groceries in the

BOGLE
Roy Harman
Bogle was established near the
site of the former Hurlburt office.
Following the pattern of the

- earlier office it was named for

.James L. Bogle, a pumper for the
railroad at the Coyote pump
station. He "became the first
Postmaster when the office was
opened November 15,-1919. Bogle

7 was succeeded by Charles ‘Lester
-1 Williams and he by Mrs. Mattie

Stewart before the office was
closed September 3. 1925.

Notes; March 22,1900
1900 White Oaks Eagle)
“John Gallacher is out looking

after the ranch his mother

recently purchased from Spence

~.Bros. in Mesa del Gallo.”

same building. They had shopping
centers in the early days, too!
At present the Capitan Post
Office serves a population of
nearly 700, besides the patrons on
two Star Routes. The two Star
routes run from Capitan to the
Alto Post Office and from Capitan

The Lincoln County News Bicentennial lssue--Special Insert-- Page A

masier e

to Pine Lodge.

The town of Capitan is the home
of ‘‘Smokey the Bear', the
national symbol of Forest Fire

"Prevention and it is hoped that

some day a commemorative
stamp will be issued honoring
“Smokey’’. '

“This is the eighth grade In Capitan in 1926. Mrs. Jack Shaw
(Frances Gardenhire) is shown third row, second from left. She
provided the picture. Can you find Madeline Clark Cheney, (third
row, first left) who resides today in Capitan; Hilda Key Young, Dub
Clark, resident of Capitan; Helen Keller Plingsten, Amelia Fritz
McKnight (who lives near Tinnie), Mrs. Eunice Hust Jones, of
Carrizozo, Berry Craig, Joe Evans, Bessy Ferguson, Mora
Ferguson Titsworth, Ruth LaMay Young, Pearl Pfingsten, Annie
Parker, Louise Fritz, Maudie Fritz, Callie Morris, Warren
Rockwell, Percy Parker, Mrs. LeRoy McKnight, Gene Prockwell

and others.

ee Tinnie is old

TINNIE
Arthur Clements

The post office at Tinnie was
established in 1903 under the name
of Analla but was changed to
Tinnie 1n 1909 in honor of the sinall
daughter of Mrs. Oney Ramond
Mrs. Ramond was postmasler
until April 7, 1914 when Henry D
Murray was appointed. He was
followed by Andrew N. Coward,
October 22, 1921. Mrs. Ramond
again became  postmasler
January 6, 1923 and with Lthe
exceplion of a shorf break when
Walter B. Rose was postmaster
she continued  until her
retirement. Mrs. Virginia
Ramond Guest, her daughter,
followed her as postmaster and
served until Arthur Clements was
appointed December 12, 1959.

Robert 0. Anderson of Roswell

‘The only Savings & Loan
you'll ever need.

decided to preserve the old
country store He spent several
thousand dollars, adding a porch
all around the building, a tower
and a pavillion besides putting In
the Silver Dollar Bar and a steak
house. Many of the old things were
in the place but a lot more were
gathered from as far away as San
Francisco by John Meigs an artist
who lives at San Patricio. Meigs
was commissioned by Mr.
Anderson to plan and oversee the
building. The building program 1s
about finished but the search for
antiques and other interesting
memoribhia continues.

“The telephone from White
Oaks to Carrizozo station is up and
in use. White Oaks had the report
of the proceedings of the Kansas
(ity Convention just as readily as

bought the building in 1958 and. any railroad town in the country.”

Chaves
SAVINGS

ASSOCIATION—

Roswell — Rulidoso

& LOAN j
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 Coal field attracts -
promoter Chas. Eddv

b

.

. had
profitable, the entire economic
history
have been changed. -

 Coal flelds in Lincoln County~
and precious metals drew the
attentlon of Charles B. Eddy,
promoter and -financer in the
1890s--resulting in = railroad
developments ~“which  had
tremendous impact on the area
but which eventually left the
mining town of thte Qaks “high
and dry ” )

Eddy’s endeavors, however,
helped make the town of Carrizozo

which today remains a railroad

- town to a certain extent.

If coal fields in the Capitan area
.proved commercially

of Lincoln County might

Decisions made by Charles B.
Eddy and decisions forced upon
him regarding coal fields in
Lincoln County had tremendous
effect on the history of Lincoln
County at the tuyrn of the century.
i william A, Kelg er, historian;
tells the story in “The Fabulous

_F_._ Frontier (1945).”
In a chapter conceming Charles

Bishop Eddy, Helleher: tells the

. story, -~

Eddy was,the man who with J.J.
Hagerman built the Pecos Valley
railroad in the 1890s-a line which

. still serves Carlsbad, Artesia and

Roswell with freight shipments

/

fal
('J‘\
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__On_April 16, 1897, many -
ancers and capltalxsts from the

and the haulmg of potash from The
Eddy County potash mines,

Hagerman and Eddy had a

parting of the ways, however,
before 1900, and Eddy became
interested in building a railroad
from El Paso to White Oaks,

Eddy saw a thisi
dustry, coal and previous
minerals mining at White Oaks,
the possibility of a tremendous
lumber business {from the
Sacramentos.

Before 1900 he and associates
acquired the Three Rivers Ranch
of George B, Barber and fook
options on coal mines at Salado
near what was to become Capitan.

He and his associates super-
vised diamond drilling on

Carrizozo flats and studied gold.

mining properties at White Oaks
At the time, El Capitan Cattle
Co. ran oves 40,000 head of cattle,
the Carrizozo Company, ,000
-head and Angus V¥ ranch, 20,000
All business for a railroad,.

cast converged on this area of
New Mexico tostudy the situation,

Qliver Lea and Albert B, Fall
were in the greeting party. After
leaving a private railroad car at
San Antonio, the group travelled
in splendidly appointed hacks and

4 4
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Carrizozo was a rallroad town in the past and remains such today

ona different scale. Pnctured is "downtown Carnzozo" across El |

major stop for paseengers-mth hotelst dmmg roomS. etc., in good
supply to take care of through passengers’ needs.

. .
:
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ing cattle in-,

ma

some 75

coaches——campmg out nights,
They visited White Oaks, Nogal
Salado, Mescalero Indian

Reservation, Tularosa and other -, e 24

points,

By Oct, 1, 1897, the eastem,z

capltallsts (railroad and coal §
mining executives included) told
Eddy that they would back a §
railroad from E! Paso toward
White Oaks, -

By Oct.8, 1897, the El Paso and
Northeastern Rallroad Co. had

i"

been incorporated by Charles B, s

Eddy.

Construction was soon started
on the 170-mile line with 150 miles
of it to be in New Mexico.

. The primary objective was to

mme and ship coal from the.

Salidao mines, -

On April 13,1898, Oliver Lee sold
his Alamo Ranch ¢ |waterrights
to the Eddy broth ers. The townsite
of Alamo Gordo (as it was first

known) was laid out, La Luz' | '

hecame a boom town with
railroad under constructlon.

company obtained optwns on
ranches in the
Sacramento Mountains--
expecting to interest Penn-
sylvania farmers in them,

By June 29, 1899, track had been
laid from El Paso to Three Rivers,
By Aug. 3 of that year, the track
had been completed to Carrizozo

flats or White Oaks Junction (now '

Carrizozo).

White Oaks residents were -

nervous because rumors had it
that the railroad would bypass

| White Oaks.

- Eddy and the railroad started a
branch line to the Salado coal
fields.

CAPITAN FOUNDED

Feb, 1, 1800, the Eddys pur-

chased acreage from 8.G,S.T.
Gray, platted a townsite on the old

- -Safferd place just across the

Salado and named it Capitan.
The railroad was built from
Carrizozo to Capitan, Coal mines

_were opened.

But, the coal mmmg was

~ difficulties and' the unavailability
of acceptable grade coal in

commercial quantities,

¥ddy had to admiit that the
Salado coal field was.-a flop. By
May 1, 1901, the coal field was

% abandoned and machinery was

pulled out of the mines.
Eddy took a new look at White

P2~ Oaks coal fields. The White Oaks

Smoke mdicates a train on the track between Camzozo and
Capltan before the line was abandoned after a coal mining venture
in the Capitan area proved to be economxcally_unproﬁtable The

o pelmyp e

. VERACRUZ ,

._'..!_.t__ e e .I

Anlee Lmda mood

Thls Post Oft'lce of two years
__existence was estabhshed to serve

.- the Vera Cruz gold mine located
. on the 'west side of the Tucson-
-~ Mourtains about ten miles east of
'Cat'l'lZOZO. . T

—line.was-the El Pase.and.Southwestern--
Eddy, fmancler ‘and promoter, |

/ Charles B.

4
[N . . L]

A. Blake, served from July 5, 1881

- until the office was dlscontmued '_
" onJune 25, 1883, The failure of the .

gold mine was the cause of its
discontinuance and the mail was
sent to Nogal.

‘It's only postmaster, ‘Fletcher

and Kansas U’W’”R’a"‘[roa@'i“C’om-““‘:

pany was incorporated. !

Comelr

of Carrizozo,
came to Carrizozo in 1910

eﬁmooooooooooooooooon

Let’s Talk
About Your

- Farmor Ranch
Operation

’I'he man in the center is 0.S. Steams, father of Johnson Stearns
when 0O.S. Stearns was trammaster here. Mr. Stearns
from the Erie Railroad and was general
yardmaster here for the El Paso and Southwestem. or
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But, Eddy started construction

of the El Paso and Rock Island
from Carrizozo to the Pecos River
(Corona-Vaughn, etc.) and

" bypassed White Oaks--which soon .
-became virtually a ghost town.

'Eddy soon thereafter became
mterested in the Dawson coal <
fields in Colfax County--a very.

successful enterprise. White Oaks
was all but forgotten.

Therailroad, however remams'
~ important to. Carrlzozo and Lin-
T 'hrCounty—aiﬂroogtrthe—spurtO"h.*
Capitan has long since vanished
-and White Oaks never realized a
-railroad dream. . .
Southern Pacific frelght trams |
ply through Carrizozo and Corona
from El Paso to Vaughn daily--’
- which might not be true if Charles
' B, Eddy hadn’t had a big dream,
A portion of that dream came

true

JIM HULSE President
BILL SCHWARTZ Vice President -

PHILIP “Flip® FRIER, Asst, Vice Presxdent
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_ 'A_L;TO
Aileen Lindamood

~ “Alto” is Spanish for high and
Alto it is—perched 7,318 feet above
theseaonthe mountams;de When
the office was established May 2,
1901 William H. Walker was the
postmaster and he’built the
present post office building and
the log cabin which stands near it,
The office has been moved from
time to time through the years but
never very far away, Iighas heen
moved from the presefabuilding
-to the log cabin, from the cabin to
across the creek, then back again
several times depending on_ the
whim of the Postmaster.

Alto.has always been, as it is
now, a community of ranching
families with caltle, gardens and
orchards, When there was
abundant rainfall the rancher
raised his own feed for stock..
When drier years came the cattle
were summered on the National
Forest under government permit
and were wintered in the valley on
land owned by the ranchers. The

.....yegetable gardens and fruit trees  *

bring green beauty to the hillsides
in spring, summer and fall and
snow blankets the earth much of
the winter,

Alto has long been a favorite
haunt for tourists because of its
picturesque setting. " Two
‘ehinechilla farms are now
operating nearby and the Sierra
Blanca Ski Area Development has -

_ brought more activity. A new

motel has been built near the Post
Office and tourists come in larger
numbers these days. Former
residents often drop by to
reminisce, Mr. and Mrs. Tom
High of Walters, Oklahoma
stopped in so he could show her
where he mailed her love letters
back in 1904. She was Lucy Jane
Wilder then, of Capitan. They
married August, 1905 and left for
Walters by covered wagon to
make their home. He worked for
Elga Peebles on the Little Creek
Ranch and the Pecbles family still
live at Altn Five generations of
the Peeble. family have received
their mail in Alto.

—p e i aa s SR

Alto 1s perched
-on mountainside .

Eugene Manlove Rhodes was a
teacher in the community in 1891-

1892, According to his son, Alan H.

Rhodes at Vestal, New York, this
is the story of his first day at
school:

““This school had the reputation
of being quite a tough one, the big
boys were nearly in manhood
estate, and had already run off

-several teachers who had gone

there to teach.

When Gene Rhodes showed up
one nice morning to teach the
school, the boys began to grin at
each other, probably thinking how
much fun they were going to have
running this new teacher off the
place. Even the girls were
giggling among themselves at the
prospect of the approaching
hilarity.

When the pupils were all inside
the school, 'Gene drew his six-
shooter out of the waist band of his
pants and rapped right smartly on

Lesnet

(EDITOR'S NOTE: The story of
communities in Lincoln County is
pretty'well toid in a history of Post
Offices. This article appeared in
the 1962 *“A History of Linceln
County Post Offices.”

RUIDOSO
Mannie Badillo and Joe Dryden
The first Postmaster of Ruidoso
was Frank Lesnet who took office
in May 1882. He was a grandfather
of Mrs. Aileen Lindamood, who is.
now postmaster at nearby Alto. At
the time the office was established
it was in a building across from
the old Dowlin Mill. Lesnet used to
sell pigs, grain and various other
products to increase his earnings.
‘When it was necessary for him to
be away from home, Mrs. Lesnet
and her two children would ask a
neighbor to stay with them to help
“protect them from wild animals
and Indians. After several years
the Lesnets moved the post office
to the still standing Old Dowlin
Mill where they lived upstalrs and
conducted the post office down
s{airs.

the desk. Very clearly he said,
““School will now come to order.*’
It sure came to order promptly
and continued that way all the rest
of the ferm.

The Grandfather of the present
postmaster was Frank Lesnett
who came through Alto wita his
wife in a Studebaker hack, drawn
by two horses. They were on their
way to Ruidoso where he opened a
store and became Ruidoso's first
postmaster in 1882. Lesnett's son-
in-law, John A. Haley, was the
father of the present postmaster.
Haley was a newspaper publisher
at Carrizozo and served as a
postmaster at Carrizozo. So
Alleen Lindamood who presides
as the postmaster at Alto today is
a third generation of her family to
serve Lincoln County in that
capacity. She and her husband
operate a store“in connection with

_the office much the same as the

first postmaster did in 1901.

serves |z

brought from Fort Stanton by
either stage coach or pony
express.

Issac N. ngﬁeld who became
postmaster in 1921, was the son of
Charles Wingfield, the third
postmaster. During his term of
office the post office was moved to
upper Ruidoso across from the
Wingfield home, the location of
the recent Munsey Real Estate.
Wingfield rode horseback to and
from Ft. Stanton to get the mail.
He used two horses and the trip
took all day so mail delivery was
two or three times a week
depending on the weather. :

By 1937 when Jack Hull became
postmaster the mail came from
Tularosa, via Hollywood, to
Ruidoso. At that time the Fourth
Class office served about three
hundred patrons, had twelve post
office boxes and stamp sales ran
about $25.00 per week. Gradually
the community became a summer
resort. Many homes were built
and people started moving in. On
July 15, 1938 it bacame a Third

2
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Callie Thompson, upper right, was the teacher for the Whlte Oa.ks
pubhc school in 1913. Students at the school in this picture (1913)
are: Lillie Lee, Ellyn Queen, Fannie Orthofer, Winnie Taylor,
Hatltie Littell, Lawrence Queen, John Littell, Fred Schale, Oliver
Swain, Aileen Wells, Martha: Taylor, Beulah Lee, Florence Ward,
Robbie Taylor, Mildred Taylor, Miller Price, Arthur Falerton
Fred Current. Roley Ward and Leroy Ward.

(EDITOR'S NOTE: The story of
communities in Lincoln County is
pretty well told in a history of Post
Offices. This article appeared in
the 1962 **A History of Lincoln
County Post Offices,” written
primarily by postmasters al the
time or former postmasters or
persons closely assoclated with
Post Offices.)

GLENCOE
Gladys Nosker

The first mail service 1o
Glencoe was without benefit of
Post Office Department. When
someone from the neighborhood
was in Fort Stanton they would
pick up mail for everyone in the
community and leave it 2t the Jap
Coe Ranch (now the Bonnell
Ranch). First official mail service
came by stagecoach from San
Antonio, New Mexico via Fort
Stanton and on to Lincoln.

Jasper N Coe, the first
Postmaster of Glencoe, sold his

first stamps on Novembher 14, 1901

Mrs. W.N. Highiower hias been a
patron of the office since she
moved to the community in 1900,
She lives alone at her home in
Eagle Creek Canyon except
during the winter months,

Before the post office was
established the famous author

V"i 5‘1?'55*:""_1 k) 1 h

The office remained in the mill
until around the turn of the
century when a Mr. Prude was
Postmaster. He moved it into a
building on Highway 70
somewhere across the street from
where Clayton. Bennett is now,

During this time the mail was

L-r! !4 JL
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Students of. the thte Oaks.

~ Public School, May 23, 1698. The
- teacher, upper right was Miss

Bessie Austin. ‘The following

- Students are pictured: first row-

Florence Whartpn, Nettie Lee,

. Blythe Beggs, Pear] Kexth ‘May

Lawther “Miss Austin, and
Gressela Kastler, second row-
Mabel Stewart, Ida Grumbles,
Lorena Sager, Mabel Ramsdale,
Addie Lalone, Edith Parker, Ida
Hoyle, and Ida,Koch |

Class office and a clerk was added
to the office. It was moved to just
east of the Adobe on July 1, 1947
and became a Second Class Office
at that time. When Hull retired in
1957 the office had grown to serve
2500 patrons in the winter and ten
times as many during the
summer.

A new, large and modern post

office with 3000 square fecet of

interior floor space was built in
1961. The building i1s located

conviently on Main Street just
east of Montie's Riding Academy.
New bank (ype counters and
screen line and more hoxes were

installed. With modern
fluorecsent lighting, enlarged
floor space © and large

maneuvering area (his plant
should take care of Ruidoso needs
for a long time. The present
building was occupied in Feb
uary of 1961 and dedicated May 7.

1961.

Mail now comes. in and oul via

Star Routes to and from Roswell,

El Paso, Alamogordo and
Tularosa. N
- Colorful
Lincoin
County
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and mail was received and
dispatched twice a week By the
lime money order service was
begun at the office on April 18,
1906 mail came three times a
week. Now it arrives six days a
week and comes from Tularosa.

The Glencoe office has been
moved several times and
destroyed by fire and flood In 1920
when Mrs. Ora G Tully was.
Postmaster the coming of the new
highway made a move of store
and office 1o a néw site on the
highway necessary. When Buck
Nosker became Postmaster in
1941 he moved it about one mile
east. On September €9 of that year
it was destroyed by flood and
lemporary guarters set up in the
Womans Club building at the
Bonnell Ranch. A new building
was raised on the Nosker property
facing highway 70 which fire
destroyed in 1944 Again
lemporary service was set up, this
time in a trailer house. The
building was replaced on the same
foundation and the Post Office is
still there as Gladys L. Nosker.
appointed Postmaster in 1949, did
not move-ijt,

~ Although the Glencoe Post |
" Office has been established since

1901 it has always been a fourth

" here was supplhied by Mrs

“March 31,

No post office

class office. The families served
by the office are from the same
farms that were homesteaded in
the early days and most of these
farms are still owned by th: same
families.

o
'‘Gringo ~
mail’

CORONA
Audrey Owen

In 1898 the people of the Corona
community had to go to Pinos
Wells or White Oaks for their
mail. A stage coach carried mail
from Las Vegas to White Oaks
coming through the mountains

west of Corona to Pinos Wells.
Oftentimes a patron would board

frie

“the hack at Corona with writing

materials, ride the twenty miles
northwest to Pinos Wells, call for
their mail, answer it and then ride
the stage back home. This route
was known locally as the ‘'Gringo
Mail'' and Rebecca Salas was
Postmaster at Pinos Wells. It was
their custom when a patron called
for his mail to hand everything in
the office out to him and let him
find his own then give what was
left back to her.

In 1902 the Corona Post Office
was established in the [front of a
store owned by Frankhn A.
Dubois who was the first
Postmaster. The city hall now
stands on the site of the ﬁrsl!‘posl
office. This office now serves
some five hundred patrons and 1s
the northernmost office in Lincoln
County.

Part of the information given
J A
SYmpson of Corona who lived there
when the office was established

HURLBURT
Roy Harman
Hurlburt postoffice
established (October 6, 1908 at
what wa$ then known as the
Coyote pump station, east of
Carrizozo on the Southern Pacific
Railroad. The office was named
for F. Hurlburt, a Southern
Pacific pumper, who became its
first Postmaster. Martin G. Lyons
succeeded Hurlburt and served
until the office was abolished
1915.

Was
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urdenhlres arrive

Jack and Frances A. Shaw .

Frances Gardenshlre
whose father,

_Mrs
Shaw,

- Gardenhlre, brought the family to
min 1916+ "has many
remained such a hospital "until

recollections of ear]y day Capitan
and area.

The family lived on the
{xardenhire Half Circle Two-Bar,

Mrs. Shaw has other roots in

B Ry N P,

Fort Stanton dates back fo the

became a Marine Hospital for
seamen whohad contracted TB. Tt

fairly recent years when it
became a part of the New Mexico
Department of Hospitals and

a facility out of Hagernian, Villa

Carrizozo to
played out and when it was
dlscaveredthe gradeof coalinthe -

Capntan area was not proper for
many uses,

Oscura

'Oscura was another postofflce

Capitan was
Jeff 1950s (as a fort) but In 1889, it abandoned after coal mines

continue to be active in Capitan
affairs.

have much to say about the
history-of Capitan area.

P. O.

nine'miles north of Capitan-an Institutions, It. now houses
area where about 70 families. retarded persons and OSCURA not all the names of Postmasters
- resided in the early days, complnmentarytoLos Lunas and - RoyHarman ‘are available, but Mrs, Vena

Stoneman was Postmaster in 1946

3 theShawhousecouldialkr.tt’dﬁ_,., — | j

M, ;S pet--
.. . Lo “- 3 ;.

Lincoln - County. Her mother's  Solano, that came into being because of a and when she resigned and moved T I
brother, Willis R. LO?&I&C& came Mrs. Shaw was on the Capltan railroad pump stagtmn The El !O Coloriida. the oi’f";e was again Dr. Paden, early.day White
to Corona and settled and was a  High state championship pygoang North Eastern Railroad, abolished. Qaks doctor (later Carrizozo) ang

prominent rancher in the Corona
area during his lifetime. The late
Holt Lovelace was his grandson,

Jack Shaw, Mrs. Shaw's
husband, also has deep roots in
Capztan He came to Fort Stanton
in 1928 from Dexter and worked at

basketball team in the 1920s.
Jack Shaw worked with Pat

Stewart-employee of the hospital

since it was founded in 1889-until
~Stewart’s retirement.

Shaw served seven’'years dn the
town council of Capitan,

now the Southern Pacific, had
built a siding and drilled a well
from which water was pumped for
its locomotives, March 28, 1901 the
office'was established to serve the
community that sprang up-at the
pumping station and was named

WHITE OAKS EAGLLJan 4,
1940

“There seems o be great
pmSpecls in store for White Oaks
in 1900. Besides general mining
activity a railrpad and incidental

two sons appear in this photo, Sons

are Mel Paden, Left, a cadet at

New Mexico Military Institute at.

the time, and Brent Paden, right.

The picture was taken while the

family was living in White Qaks,
{1900) _

Fort Stanton as engineer for 37  Sgon  the  tow Was ¢ the mountains to the west, Improvements are expected.” “Dr. M.G. Poden went to Nogal
years and five mopths before incorporated, Shaw recalls that a George 4;“ Gafgcai was the first It is confidently expected that Monday, where as Game Wardzn,
retirement, hattle over upplies was o,qmaster, Six years later the this date 12 months will show this 3 "want' 1" nrosecute A.C. Storm

‘His main job in the early-days
was to keep the boilers fired and
steam and power flowing at Fort
Stanton when the plant was coal-

“equal to the 'meoln County

war."”
The George A. thsworth were

-~ married in 1907. M‘r. Titsworth's

office was abolished in Febmary
only to be re-established in the fall
by a group of people from Chicago
who* became interested in the

little city to be on a through line of

railways from Liberal, Kansas to
El Paso and one of the busiest
towns in New Mexico.™ *

for a violation of the fish law. The

charge against Storm was
destruction of {ish in Eagle Creek
by allowing sawdust from his mill

fired, widow now resides in the Hondo | _ eam to deposit in th
Fort Stanton, Shaw says,jused  Valley in the Tinnie area, She was aré?t;&edan 1932 it.-was again re- > C?m rﬂ" ﬁﬁml?f 'f‘ge defendani was. hnecel
- 300 carloads of coal a-*yearnvnth"“'“ a Ferguson. opened in 1946 but only for a short - Lincoln $25.00 and costs of the suit...”
, the coal coming by railroad to Families were close in the ranch while. Exact dates are hazy and County

Capitan (via two switchbacks

from Carrizozo to Capitan) and .-

being dumped in Capitan, It was
hauled from Capitan to Fort
Stanton by truck.

Capitan was larger in the 1930s
than it is now, Mrs. Shaw recalls,
She was acting postmaster at Fort
Stanton in the early 1930s. George

area where Mrs, Shaw grew up,

Many people had homesteaded
in that area north of Capitan,

Shaw ‘remembers when many
carloads of apples were shipped
out of Capitan by railroad. That
industry has faded.

Capitan was incorporated in the
1840's when Fletcher Hall's father

e Early day hunting e

Five bears and 33 . ~er were of all pasture permits in force on

killed in the 1911 hunting season in
the Lincoln National Forest, a 1911
“Lincoln News Lefte=" reve 's.

this Forest is necessary and the
work will be taken up at the
carliest possible date that lhc

ths; of course ths brings ina lltlle
revenue hut unless the ranger is
very cconomical with his time,
they do not pay. These small sales,

. The news letter was published weather-will permit. - have shown up bad, economically,

E;tr:r‘ggfxg?y Slg‘lwa‘;{"}‘: eéapi?annd ?:sdt&(:ndg:&m%rhegg lls gfvrg - monthly by the officers of the IMPROVEMENTS on the Lincoln, It is a problem lo

was postmaster. ' becoming incorporated, ~ Lincoln National Forést which  Supervisor Kinney spent from know just how to .transacl this
~ The Shaws live in the Titsworth  Titsworth was the Ford dealer Dad been established in 1802, December 4 10 ¢ at the Tucson business to make it pay.

house-a mansion in downlown
Capitan. The Shaws purchased the
iwo-story, roomy and homey, old
home 18 years ago.

and sold many, many
Model Ts in the old days. He
became a large land owner-
owning much of the Tinnie area

Other pertinent facts from the

December 1911 News Letler:
-The lumber for the con-

struction of the stock shipping

Ranger Station supervising the
construction of a new barn.

--~-Ranger Scoft spent from
December 4 to 9 at the Mesa

PERSONNEL
-~-We are glad to announce
that Assistant Forest Ranger

T~ ' | .. rop Station. ing with Swain has been promoted from
- - d pens by the EP. & S.W.R.R. at Ranger Station, assisting with the _
B hbﬁmmigelggsxtsworth built the acg(;l)it;i?ch acreage all aroun Capitan is on the ground and the ~construction of a new barn and ASSW““&E;{:?‘?;I}:‘:EE?’ iglg"ms"
Titsworth was a merchant and  Frank English, long-time wrork ‘;’lm be commenced shortly  bridge, both of which were ra'zlj'%zr reorganization leaves
car dealer in Capitan. For many  resident of Catrizozo, helped build  after the first of the year, completed during the month and Ranger Nabours in charge of the
 yearswater from hiswell supplied the Titsworth house~which stood - --Notice to stockmen giving the  which fill a much needed want, - Gallm§s Division, Ranger Swain
the town and the railroad. Shaw  almost alone in Capitan in 1908, Bfazing fees for the coming  .-It is planned lo construct a in charge of the Patos and North
worked for Mr. Titsworth ondays  Nearby was the Gray house- Brazingseasonswillbedelayedon telephone line from the Patos Capitan Districts, Ranger Rogers
off. Mrs, Shaw's father worked at  Capitan originally was named 8ccountolthissubject being taken Ranger Station to connect with the nc[:)har e of the Tucson and South
the Titsworth store-located about  Gray. up by Congress. Capilan-Tucson line, This would ]Ca e Districts, and Ranger
where the Capitan Branch of Like many communities in the ~_ ~-Welch and Titsworth have give telephone connection bet- B P charge of the While
Ruidoso .State Bank is now ' area _Capitan hag a railroad - ___Kreceweda.sh:pmeq_l“of_z-year-o]‘d_ ween_ all stations and the . byron IE'W‘I%MW
T Iocated historv~-until the line from heilers” Irom Mexico as an ex-  supervisor’s office excepl the MOU"fdn
R e oo oo . periment. - Gallinas-and this has telegraph . . oh More WorK
| ' --Porfirio Chavcs, whose cattle connection. he S—-"‘_‘f""._‘f"m‘_“’ -m°-*‘3w" " “]’?
were grazed on the Ruidoso » TIMBER SALES t}_e perg_?anenl 'nl‘llenz'l:m ._..':i“ !nﬁ
X District, has disposed of his entire ~ Ranger Rogers' baby having Short of a ‘_"’ﬁ B ot
herd to Melvin Franks, und they been sick it was necessary to Y5 le?imahc?l y a’.‘_'l"a;j”’:h&
-~ have been shipped out ol‘ the detail Ranger Swain to scale the groc dure ‘;"t' accomplish  the
country, timber in the sale to the Wildeat GS‘;{E resu Ss" " the
---Stock are showing thc el'fects Leasing Company, of While Oaks, Rd anger }S(:i wf’ii on )
| of the continued severe weather  N,M. o urntlg, t‘wﬂg&
g = duringthe-past-month~——— g nnmber-ot simall Sales have upet—'ﬁamg-t o-construclion-otiy
«-Some of the cattlemen who been made in the past two mon- barn ¢ 1hat station.
toodk gdvantziige t?T ughe high prices | |
and disposed of their herds are |
. talking of stocking up again with ’ ************* ******‘ki -
Chichuachuas. | -
~-The local cattle market % - RQSWELL‘ Ne M. BRZDL B
B continues fine, cows  bringing o - R B
| from $23 to $25 and buyers offering” % | Cameras and Phaotographic o
. lo contract for yearlings for May »} Supplies. Electronic Equipment-~ - &
delivery at $20. % TV’s, Sound Systems, Calculators,ete. . %'
LANDS e - Fine Film Processing, B
On several Forests jn the o | | . e
- distFiet where resurveys of | | | R
pastures have been made it was & w0
¥ generally found that the “old '3 '
w surveys weic inaccurate and ina % &
I N cood many instances the new % N o
. . surveys developed the fact that B e W
o e | . BRI B the enclogires Eontalnedalarger. SOU "
T . ~acreage than the pernmit ol . . T
o ‘This is the Garéenhire iamnly, Mrs Frances Gardenhlre Shaw - o g i cu:szpc)lerablecﬁ)l;sﬁtjze:5: 220 N. MA,N * F oo BOX 1794 ) R
~now a resident of Capltatk.l in thcallr pla;:e elghtDm;le: ?Soéltit(lergf;'l"the ervico. As it is quite possible "% - v 5"35 622-0630 &
- Capltan many years-ago: Also in the picture are Dorri . that\the sarue conditions prevail —amssss\ ¥¥ ¥¥¥¥ S eS|
s - Hunter aﬂd Spencer Jackson;. BT T ) "here'tls felt that a carefu?checl\ ¥¥¥¥ ¥¥¥ *¥¥ ¥ '

. | - . - . . . S . . . .- . ) N . - .
. . . . . ) . “ - ! . N . . T - ‘
- . o e . . . i . . s . ‘

! .
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This was the Carrizozo train depot about 1820 when railroading
‘was in its prime—Carrizozo being a main passenger stop with

When steam locomotives were puffing down the tracks out of
Carrizozo and into Carrizozo, the roundhouse here was a busy place

standing.

(EDITOR'S NOTE: The story of
communities in Lincoln County is
pretty well {old in a history of Post
Offices. This article appeared in
the 1962 “A History of Lincoln
1 County Post Offices,” wrillen

- primarilly by postmasters at the
§ time or former postmasfers or
persons closely assoclated with
Post Offices.)
HONDO
Mary L. Joiner

Lists of names and dates do not
‘make for very interesting reading
usually and that is about all one
has to rely on in compilin% a
history gf the Hondo. Post Office.
Noone séems to know exactly why
the name “Hondo' was chosen.
- Some of the old timers say that it
] was originally known as “La
t - Junta®’, meaning meeting or

® joining and that perhaps in the

§ process of mispronunciation the
& word *“hondo” evolved. On the
# other hand perhaps'the site was
41 named for the crossing on the Rio

- - 3 - YY1l 3-—-—-

hefore it burned many years ago.

oLy ..H()n d() or t La Junta’ " am

much because the roads were
difficult to negotiate and the cars
temperamental,

Mrs. Stover told of the time
when the mail was taken care of in
their “parlor'’’, when a stranger
entered while she was working the
mail. This stranger stuck a little
block book under her nose-and she
straightway told him she didn't
have time to look, she was busy
with the mail. The man explained
to her then that ‘he was a Post
Office Inspector angs offered his
help. She told him to get busy with
the registered mail—and—he did!

Jim Gonzales operated a
grocery and general merchandise
store for many years and also ran
the tol¥idge across the Bonito
river. He was the father of two

.. postmasteys and rented to most of
the: postmasters during the
tweglies. Some of the postmasters
also offered room and board to
teachers and others who came

through the valley. By the time

Leo A. Joiner became postmaster

Remains of the structure are still

h

14

the junction of wo main
highways—U.S. 70 and U.S. 380,
and at the junction of two rivers as
well, the Rio Ruidoso and the Rio
Bonito. No doubt  this has
contributed to its, growth. Now
with rivers of traffic-in front on
the busy highway and the whisper
of water in the rivers to the back

Hondo continues a history of

service to the community and
passersby.

~ difficult to ford with vehicles, for
3 Hondo tneans deep. However it
B came by it's name, Hondo is
MR definitely on the map, though the
P! true story of its beginning and
' namemay be forever buried in the
- past. .

. Office began February 6, 1900
. "when John S. Williams was

se ? - hpostlﬁ»awsfévfféf uomﬁgm:;g,..yeﬁrf *By

2 ; 1906 Caroline F. Vorwerk was

i’

i
.

Y -
s A

- postmaster and the Post Office
iwas located about a mile west of
its present site. Mrs. Vorwek
probably moved it during her
tenure several ‘miles west for a
long valley in that area still bears
the name Vorwerk Canyon.
Allie F. Stover who became
postmaster in June 1913 had the
. distinction of ' being the, first

| . postmaster "to” write ‘a money

~ order on the Hondo office and the
. purchaser was a Mrs. Sloan. Mail
? " haeks first carried the mail on
¢ their way' from Roswell to
" I Carrizozo. Horses*were changed

Tipn vk e,

% in and the horses and hacks were
discarded for Buick ,anq--Gadl'ilac

cars.The'. coming . of .the

“#

¥

) ¥

RGN v

automobile didn’t speed things. up

" Recorded history of the Hondo

| 4 several times each way. While
bt Allie Stover was postmaster the
age of the automobile was ushered

€ 0l11Ce Wi JVECLC 0 TO0

adjoining the store. Mr. Joiner
moved the office to its present site
about a quarter of a mile east of
the old store building. Joiner
resigned to accept a position with
the Immigration and
Naturalization Service and Mary
L. Joiner, the present postmaster,
was commissioned.

.. ..Hondo was shown steady growth
through the years. It is located at

- July 26-FROM PICACHO
(1900 White Oaks Eagle)

“Crops on the Hondo are better ;

this year than for some years
13515& Small grain; wheat, oats and
barley have never been better and
“there is not a particle of smit, or
rust or other defects...

..There is a tremendous yield of
apples on these ranches, and the
fruit crop is generally 7 good;

s peaches, plums, pears  and

cherries galore. Our old friend,
August Cline, hs an orcifrd that
is a thing of beauty.. ;
...''R.P, Hopkins, Martin
Chaves,” Geo.<Kimbrell, Mrs. B.
Guyse and W.H. Lumbley, all
have fine young orchards...
| - (signéd) Julian

J
C 4
-
F 4

magnificent hotels and accomodations.

S . edliingdiaandeale 2

L

(ALSO—SHEET METAL CONTRACTORS)

—— QUALITY ALWAYS —

L P - . .‘ - L3
Call us, we will serve you in any location in Lincoln County or
anywhere in New Mexico.

This is the orlginal old Lincoln County court house In Carrizozo,
replaced by a new one in the 1960s. The building was constructed
about 1812-when New Mexico became a state.
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AMILTON
~ ROOFING
'COMPANY

OF NEW MEXICO
(505) 622-3041

* ¥ K KKK

Serving Southeastern New Mexico for 40 Years!

Al/-Westher Insursnce = ‘
ANEW ROOF &=
704SE Main Roswell . | Box 687
A W. H. (Bill) WOLE, President
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f Hls'lory re-creafe

~(EDITOR'S NOTE? THe story of ~

communities in Lincoln County is

. pretty welltold in a history of Post

Offices, This article appeared in

the 1962 **A History of Lincoln -

County Post Offices,”” written
primarily by postmasters at the
time or former postmasters or
- persons closely’ associafed with
Post Offices.)
LINCOLN

MARY (HATTIE) PHILLIPS

Colorful, historic Lincoln was
known until 1869 as “Las Placitas
del Rio Bonito". An old census

shows that -'lhereﬁe about a.

thousand people h And around
Lincen -in those days but the
beginning of mail service is ob-

“scure. The Murphy Store which

. was built in 1874 and later used as

a Caurt House probably housed
the first official Post Office in
Lincoln. However, 24 years earlier
part of the Tunstall-McSween
store was built and a slot"in the
door was evidcntly used for mail.

used later in the -Murphy Store.
History can be recreated by
reading the labels still on the.
boxes today. They read:

(1) Probate Clerk

(2) Sheriff

(3) Barber & Richardson (At-
torneys). (George Barber
married Alexander McSween’s

widow, Susan)

RGN Independent
nGWSpaper published in Lincoln in
‘the 1880’s by James Kibbee, father
of actor, Guy Kibbee,) |

(5) Wyley and Dells

(6) Cockrell-tJohn J. Cockrell
was an attorney in partnershxp
with Thomas B, Catron and W.T.
‘Thornton of Santa Fe,) =

. {7} Whelan and Company'

(Managers of the Lincoln Hotel)
{8) Judge Ryan

(9) Thornton and Curry (Bank -

Exchange Saloon) George Curry
was,a Lincon Couty Sheriff and
Territorial Governor.

{10} Old Man ~Cronin (Col.
Mickey Cronin ran a general store
.in the old court hous

t11) Montano andf Sans (The

Montano ‘store was famed as a

strong hold of the McSween

{:ctnon during the Liitcoln County
ar.)

(12) B.J. Baca (Son of Capt.

___Satuning Baca who createﬂ old,
’I‘unstall-McSween Store were

Tancoln County)
113) Lea Cattle Company (C.S.

Thyrher, partner of Capt. J.S,
Led, one of Roswells earliest
seulerSJ

(143 "Tomlinson, Druggist.
€15}

merchandising. and ranching.
tIncluding the Sunset Ranchin the
valley established by Michealas, a
wealthy Australian.)

"{The

“Wwhen John .
Pm;rwasshcriff'ir\ r1880°s

Michealas - Company,

- . office..

N .

—----——-The f:rst mail was brought from SN
Las Vegas, New ‘Mexico-perhaps |
by pony express-and later from |
San Antonio, New Mexicp. The |
officially |

Post Office was
established in 1873 with John R,
Bolten as the first Postmaster,

The office was moved from Rl
to building as post- 3
masters changed but most often it ¥
was found in some part of the {3 ;"™
Tunstall-McSween building where J#" '. "

- building™

1t is now. Loyd Hulbert, who came
icoln in 1898, remerrfbers that

xs famnly stayed at the Serrano
Hotel where the Gipson House is
now and that Sophia Serrano was
Postmaster, In 1904 it was in the
west end of the Tunstall;McSween
store_and . though .J.
was postmaster his <daughter,
Mary, took care of the mail, This
part of the building was later torn
down and Mary kept office in the
Norman Store. bunldmg 1908 saw
the office in thé Frank Hulbert
house, in 1912 in the place which is
now knowh as LaPaloma Bar and
taterthatsameyearmthe Aragon—
building, Sometime in the 20's
Emelio Miranda became post-
master and moved the office to its
present location in the east end of
the Tunstall-McSween Building.
» A story taken from the Roswell
Record reflects some of the

JW, Walters

A group includmg Nettie Lee
smon of Carrizozo appears atop
' Baldy in! 1908,

THE TELEPHONE LINF IS GO,
- (19{}{} White Oaks Ea;,le)

line to Carrizozo has been taken,
and as soon as the stock holders-
some of which are absent-can be
gotten together the contract for its
consfruction will be let,” -

stormy past of the Lincoln Ppst '

Office. Under the caption **Even |
‘Uncle Sugar' went in for curb |

service hack in the ‘70's, the

Roswell Record published the |

following:

“Once in Lincoln, Alexander !

MeSween instructed Marshall A - RSESEY
Upson, postmaster at the hamlel il AR A
of Roswell, to put his mail in 8 FOA '
private pouch at Roswell and have  §/Kaig®

the mail coach drop it at Me- (§rtesh

Sween'soffice in Lincoln, He liked

that better than having it FN ﬁ el

processed at the Lincoln post

Unecle Sam wanted more cash,

Uplon made postal history on Jan, o

15, 1879. when he filed  claim

against the estate of Alexander

McSween, Shields, Law Office, -

Lincoln County Building, Lincoln,

For that extra service ‘

o ———

Village

ARABELA

; The little village of Arabela is
- nestled at the very eastern tip of

the Capitan Mountain, For many

“years the community was known

as *Los Palos”, or ‘‘the sticks".

Many of the oldér residents still-

refer to Arabella as Los Palos.

- Legend has it that the settlement

became Arabela when a lady took

- care of the mail whose given name

»

was Arabela, -

Andrew M, Richardson was the
first postmaster., He .was
‘appointed on Februyary 15, 1901,
He has many descendenis still

living in the area, though none

,seem to remember anything of
note' about the &st office. The
next postmaster¥as Thomas B.
Meek, appointed November 9,
1905. The last postmaster was
Leopolda Pacheco, who was

appointed on March 14, 1907 and

continued as postmaster'unul the
office was disconiinued on Apnl-

30, 1928, Thy Hondo, N. Mex. post
office acquired the office
equipment in January 1938 and
used it for several years, Mr,
‘Pacheco sull reSIdes at Arabela,

Colorf_UI_ P
Lincoln
County

/4

'l‘his is a picture of Charley and Mary Coe on the day of thelr

weddmg in lhe Ruidoso Valley-at the Coe place.

4

T 2 A b s o 3 T e 2 _" - . 22 i o e T e S

Current County Commissioner Bill Hart is shown on the initial
trip he and other area residents made into the Sierra Blanca Ski .
- areabefore it was a ski ares, The horseback trip was sponsgred by .
the Forest Service--to check out the area as a potential ski area
site, Hart doesn’t ski much anymore-«-but he was pretty good in.the

“6lden days."

Many Mines Active

Names of mines often men:

tioned in the White Oaks Eagle --

1900 Orphan Boy -- owned by Capt.
W.B. Brock of El Paso (lead,

_ gilver and gold- on the Bonito

Big Four owned by Emetson

. May { copper and sllvernTannatd
. Canyoh)
Cricket and Fire King (owned -
- by P.G. Peters. (gold., _silver and )L
. lead-On the Bonita) '

D ek |
Mogul~owned by Alfred Corn

‘ and Mrs. Anderson from Gaylord
. rlead, s:lver dl‘ld gold on. the

¥

Bonita) .

Silver Cllff and Minder's Cabin -
gold (adjoining the Old Abe mine)
0Old Abe ~- Whiteman;~ |

Parker Mine--first opening for .

coal in White Oaks--1180

umm' Co.

“ Boston Boy

7 Godiva

“Compromise
Jack’s Peak
‘Tip Top on the Bomta

South Homéstake owned by

~ N.Mex. Upton asked for $68.89 to Mg e

be paid the post office “for at- , w

lending private mail sack between
Roswell and Lincoln, August 20, .
1877 to August 27, 1878 at $1,50 per

" week, and for 400 postage stamps

“and like items.” No mention is:

made of the 6utcome of the suit. <
The first eight positmasters of

Roswell served thenr terms whxle

(,ounty

In the late 1800’5 untxl about 1912
the mail wasmamed by buck-
‘board from~ Roswell east from
White Oaks via Fort Stanfon west.
To and from Roswell the driver

stopped at Picacho and also.at a

place near where the Diamond A
ranch is now to change horses. At

flI‘St driver by automobile,

Sportsmah
Wagon |

POWER WAGON

~Buy a new Dodge pickup, sportsman or- van and
) receive $200 direct from Dodge plus trade in“for your
% car or pickup. A good supply of dodge 4¢whéel drives *
- we, We lease pickups, trucks, automobiles. Complete : g

In recent years Lincoln has been - -
restoring the old buildings as they ¢
‘were in the'early days. It has an

excellent museum and is a lovely-
little community snuggling in the -
foothills dreaming of the roaring
days of the old west of the past. *
In the old Tunstall-McSween -
. ©_building the present- postmaster,’
- ' Mary H. Phillips, will sell you a
. four cent stamp near the place the
| flr&&Postmaster set Up hns offlce

' Admiral Schley | vin i,

~ 1309 S. E. MAIN

r Servxce Department. Daily Rentals Also.
one time Porfirio Chavez, at one |-
~ time the sherilf, had the mail £
contract. Mattie Porter was the 4 .-

| SOUTHWEST DODGE, Inc. | ?5
P, O, BOX 1856
, . ROSWELL, "NEW MEX)CO 86201

.
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(Continued from Page 14)

Ruidoso most every year since.
Alfred Hale rented horses and

sold fire wood to the summer

visitors, Later Mr, Klefanda and
Montie Gardenhire had hogses for
rent. ' pagilliland

The Ruidoso Junction store was
built and operated by Ed Gilliland
in 1925. In 1927 Tke Wingficld and

- John Mims puchased the Junclion
..Store from Gilliland. Clayton_fributed to the great development
| Bennett, who came to New Mexico

== Downs history ==

SR | > Downs Post Office.
(EDITOR'S NOTE: The story of H
communities in Lincoln County is ter the named changed and the

pretty well told in a history of Post

- Offices, This article appeared in
~ the 1962 *A History of Lincoln

County Post Offices,” written

-' primarily by postmasters at the
| time or former postmasters or

persons closely assoclated with

| Uncrowded Ruideso was the story in this photo of
- Millin about 1920. The original mill was built about 1890 at this site.

—Heorses for rent——— S

t. Post Offices.)
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. RUIDOSO DOWNS
, Dorothy R. Parncl}

To add to the prestige of the
already nationally known Ruidoso
Downs Race Track the officlals of
the track wanted a postmark.

Fulurity and secretary-treasurer
of the track, suggested that the
near-by village of Green Tree

R | change its name to Ruidoso

vﬁ&guﬂ‘ "}‘a’d -~ " S R
S - ’ 5
LI 3 %9 9 )

L s

< 3 '. "r. L w:& "“.—.:%;;".:-.- v "I A o b’ cr'. W‘;

s ,:3;‘5:&@3‘% X Yy g.’sf’ #23 *z “ﬁ-“-#’m A ‘:;s‘: :;3?:.
the Lesnet's

about 1925, operated the Junction
store for many years.

.The first rodeo was held in 1928.
The rodeo grounds were later
subdivided into the Skyland ad-’
dition.

During the decade of the 1930's
and to date thousands of people
have enjoyed the tall cool pines of
Ruidoso. It would be difficult to
ghve credit to all who have con-.

of Ruidoso during these times.

race track started routing its
large mailing through the office it
soon outgrew its quarters. In
February the Post Office
Department called for bids to
furnish larger facilities. Mr. and
Mrs. Ed Sanders of Ruidoso were
awarded the contract to erect a
modern, brick building.

The office advanced to Sccond

Class on July 1st and moved into

the new, modern building
including new furnishings and
bank type counters. The new Post
Office was dedicated May 6, 1961.

Field-Service-Officer-Leland-A —

Hensley, originator of the famous . Mitchell, Jr., represented the Post
i All-American Quarter Horse

Office Department and delivered
the dedicatory address.
dedicetory address.

The Office, like others in the

area, receives and dispathces Angus existed only fifteen years.
mail by Star Route from Roswell, _Established March 10, 1898, it was _

The village council of Green
Tree called an election to
determine the wishes of the

‘%%| «citizens regarding the proposed

name change in Feb. 1858. A large
majority of the voters cast their
ballot affirmatively and the
Village of Green Tree became
Ruidoso Downs. The Post Office
Department opposed the move for

October of the same year.

1960 was a memorable vear for

Alamogordo, Tularosa apd El
Paso. Dorothy R. Parnell the only
postmaster to serve Green Tree as
Postmaster continued in that
office when it became Ruidoso

Downs. Steers Delivered

White Oaks Eagle
June 11, 1900
“J.F'. Hinkle delivered
head.of 3- year-old CA - steers last

1,970

— = =some-time-and-withheld-changin g~ Friday and Saturday to e Custeér
- *'the name of the Post Office until cattle Co., of Billings, Mo. They
began-Joading Friday and com-
nday.”

pleted

o Aiways There, Chinese - ].
and American Goods. Jack

and Susie Chew Appreciate

Your Business, A Quarter . B
Century Plus Serving
" The Area. —

lincoln County's color:.. .
dramatic history would . be
complete without mention ot , -
and the San Patricio Polo Cluu

Horses, cow ponies, quar-
terhorses, breeding stock and so
forth have played a strong role in
the county since pioneer days
when the horse was the only
means of transportation whether
ridden individually or pulling a
Wagon or surrey.

Polo ponies figure in the picture.

The San Patricio Polo Club
really dates back to 1938.

Present officers of the club
include Peter Hurd, rchairman,
and Phelps Anderson, president.

Anderson has written
“*Historical Notes on San Patricio
Polo.” He says:

ANGUS
Aileen Lindamood
Though Angus is still a
community the Post Office of

discontinued May 15, 1913 and the
mail sent to Alto. Only three
Postmasters served this office.
The first one, Porter G. Peters
was followed by James Burell on
March 17, 1909 and Mary A. Hagee
on June 24, 1910.

Angus served the star route
carriers as a place to change
teams in their trek from Capitan
t0- ‘Ruidoso. The carriers -were
Charles Wingfield and Rube Copel
and members of their families
still in Ruidoso and Ruidoso
Downs. ‘

The old school house of Angus
still plays an important part in the
community life. The building
itself is a source of great pride and
is maintained by the Angus
Community Association. Benefit
pie suppers, teas and parties add
to annual donations to swell the
funds used in the upkeep of this
favorite meeting place. Funerals
are held there as the cemetery
adjoins and makes a peaceful last
resting place in its beautiful
surroundings.

The Bonito Volunteer Fire
Department holds monthly
meetings in the building but
perhaps its lingering spirit is best
pleased when the joyful noise of

- the community sings are echoing

-t

down the valley.
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“In the year 1938 polo began in

San Patricio. Peter Hurd, Eric
Knight and the four Herrera
brothers played polo on one of the
more level Hondo Valley hillsides.
These six players were not lacking
for epthusiasm ass-they raced
across the gullie and cactus of
Peter Hurd’s Centinel Ranch. For
the next two decades this dry cow
pasture was the settling for many
fast polo games. The winners and
losers of these early games have
long been forgotten; however the
excitement and humor is still
alive and well in San Patricio.
*“The present outdoor polo field
on the north side of the Rio
Ruldoso was leveled and planted
in 1960._A few yards from the
southeast corner of this field lie
the stone foundations of a cantina
and casino. This site provided
much revelry for the Fort Stantoh
oldiers and many of the more
colorful Lincoln County War

participants. Peter Hurd has

—

—_—— e e | e ——— ——

. ' was a boom town when mines in the hills were
producing fortunes in gold. The Hoyle House shows, upper left.

- Polo _club active -

collected gold buttons from the
clavary officer's coats on and
around this site. _

“In 1963 the polo area was
completed at the Sunset Stud
Farm. A year later the San
Patricio Polo Club received of-
ficial recognition from the United
States Polo Association. The San
Patricio -arena polo teams have
won the VSPA Sherman Memorial
Arena Five Goal for an unpre
cedented three consecutive years.

“San Patriclo has a large
number of the polo playing New
Mexico Military Institute Alumni.
Former cadets of these NMMI
national championship teams
include Ross and Buz Easterling,
Rube and Bob Evans, Louie
Nalda, and Mickey Sammuels.
The Peter Hurd family is the only
third generation polo family at
San Patricio as father Peter, son
Michael, and grandson Pedrito
have all played this game of

orgsnized chaos called polo.”
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- TOYOTA

- Serving Southeastern
New Mexico and Lincoln
County Since 1928

Dean Motor Co., Inc.

323 N. Virginia & 1407 W. Second
Roswell, New Mexico 88201
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shown in 1923, This was thg first Post Office ir Ruidoso. It must

(EDITOR'S NOTE: Charlie river, to reach the mill wheel by
*  VWingfield and family came to. ditch. - _
Ruidoso in 1884, Della Wingfield _ Post Office moved
Iale, now of Chama, provided the , In 1904 Mr. Prude moved the
- following early-day history of the Post Office from the mill to what
Ryidoso area for the Lincoln is now Hiway 70, just west of the
"~ County News.) _present Elks Club. On November
o RUIDOSO B, 1904 Mrs. Fount (Alice) Miller
(A Spanish word for noisy o1~ as appointed postmaster and
clamorous) | served for seven years. In 1915
There is little recorded history George Friedenbloom became
of the settlement known as postmaster. He later developed
. construction of the sawmill at the Hollywood and served as post-
junction of the Ruidoso and master there for seve -1 ye.irs,
~ Carrizocrecks in the Jatter partof  Mrs: A.O. (Molly) Crelvy became
- the year 1., ‘ - postmaster in 1917 and served
- Ine Janaa. v of 1869 Captain  until 1921 wi-n lke Wingfield
__suturnine Bara from Socorro was became postr-ister _and _mov
mstruméitar in establishing  the post otlice to the Wingfield
Lingoln County with Paul Dowlin, - property. -on- the--Ruidoso: - He -
Dr. Blazer and Florencio Gon- served as postmaster until 1937
zales first county commissioners, when Mrs, Jack Hull became
The Dowlin mill was the hub of postmaster, .
all activity in Ruidoso for many ~ Duririg the early days mail
r‘ years. It served as a sawmill, came from Ft, Stanton by way of
~ grist mill, post office, store and Ruidoso then to Tularosa. Later
blacksmith shop.

o SR VR
..rs_«f vip S k.

P W
! Frank Lesnet owned and ’ 2’;* & i 5ol (5
e cOperated-the-mill-during-the-1880's— 4 "L ol i , & e s g5 B
- and'served as Postmaster in 1885, g e i e
Charlie Wingfield and family, Ny

who had come to Ruidoso in 1884 &k
lived at the mill from 1886,
- working for Mr. Lesnét. During
- - the time the Wingfield's lived-at $)\%
<=~ the mill four childrenwere born, & Wi
including my father, Ike. B
Charles Wingfield served as'the § ,
third postmaster of Ruidoso, J’’

serving from January 1891-1893. . t
He also served as County assessor §
+ in 1890 and was serving as county
commissibner when he died in
«. Sometime in the early 1900s the
~ "original mill was torn down and [
_ 'the present mill was built in 1914, SN
L Water to -operate the mill, wheel The R
o came from a dam across the
"~ .+ Ruidoso river in the vicivity of the -

E "

v : T

R *..' Y .

- Sawmill launche

E S% ka0 k. > oy ]

idoso Post Office and Grocery store after it was moved to -
. the-Ruidoso, and Ike Wingfield bécame ‘postmaster-in 1921, This

picture was made in 1922. The old yellow gas pump is shown with oil : *
'« present Ruidoso ‘post office, and ~ _ barrels and a storage-shed under the trees. The little*téht  in ithe- .-

.~ was flumed across the _Ca!'.l‘.i_Z_Q_-‘w_.______baCkg‘rcundwas_theASumme_n_%amp._fonOpala'nd...TdotsieWingfie.ld:------j----- frame constriiction at the “HNrst"
L - — — . A | . EE . | ’ . E ‘ ‘ ' | )- ._ . . A | | | . .’... o ‘

crowd.

the route was ‘changed to come
from Roswell by way of Hondo.

Andy Randelph was about the
first, if not the first, mail carrier
fo serve Ruidoso after the post
office was moved to Wingfields,
Later Ed Williams was awarded
the contract during the late 1920's.

The only dwelling constructed
west of the old’mill was the
Charlie. Wingfield residence,

Charles wf.

Wingfield is

~pictured. He settled in the Ruidoso
area in the early 1880s, Mr,
Wingfield was assessor of Lincoln
County from 1891 until 1895 and at

B ) fg{%;"mé‘ﬁfn“’é*érﬁré’ﬁeatn. in 1910 wasa
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‘ Ruidoso's Post Office and the'Ike Wingfield Grocery Store are  ave been mail day when this photo was taken judging from the

s Ruidoso'

end of the strecl now known as
Wingfield Avenue (at the time this

area was an alfalfa field) 0

Steam from the mill was piped
across the road and used to heat
the swimming pool,

Duing the early 1900's, lke
Wingfield and family operated the
only grocery 'store, sellin;
everything from horse shoes,

nails, bulk sugar, fresh meat,

where he had homesteaded in the, gasoline, oil, dairy products, and

. ';heen-dmown«—asmmﬁ&‘ﬁ-an&!esummerﬂhemesfwem“c;wmed‘*ﬁ%ﬁ'lm‘ﬁfék'ﬁtrnﬁ”f‘fﬁm

built between 1915 and 1920,
About 1918, W.R. White, better
known as Sally and his wife,

Chloe, built a sawmill just east of

the “first” bridge on the Ruidoso.

. .. ~ _ . 5 T
White married Ben Greison, who
served in county offices for many
years, ' |

‘The sawmill was in operation
for, several years and during the
1920's a swimming pool was
constructed on the hill just South
and east of the mill, at the west

built and a

LI

except Wednesday and Saturday
nights, at which times' dances
were held. - .

- Addition Built . . .
In 1922 an addition to the

e el

_ga

member of the board of county
commissioners,

o

bridge.
* Navajolodge-1923 ‘
The Navajo Lodge was built

s WM oot 1923 by -Bob and Edith

Boyce. A couple of years later
they added a damnce halk

In 1925 the Creissapts built the
Alberts from Roswell, who
operated it for many years,

There was a Chamber of
Commerce, a Board of Health,
and garbage removal in Ruidoso
in 1925, I believe Edith Boyce is to

be credited with these develop-
mﬁm& e

In 1923 H.E, Carter purchased

~ eighty acres of land from Mary

Purrington, He suvdivided the
land and lots from the first sub-
division were being sold in what is
known as Ruidoso Springs. Dean's
Drug Store, Harry Gottlieb Curios
and pictures, C.W, Van Sickle
Lumber, J.T. Sayers Service
Station, were some of the first

‘businesses in the area in the mid

and late 1920's.> .
- H.A. Bercherding from El Paso

children from the Southwestern
Childrens Home, which was a
project begun by the L0O.O.F.
Lodge, to spend vacation time at
the camp. In 1926 lke Wingfield

uilt and a barber shop was
opened and operated by Jack
Howenstine followed in later
years by Jim Travis.

The first electrie lights were a

Delco plant installed in 1922 at the

Wingfield residence to serve all
the business operations there, In

j 1926 Joe Mogel, from El Paso built
theufirst electric light plant to_

Southwestern Childrens Home
and buildings were constructed,
Children from ‘the home have
enjoyed a summer oufing in
- (Continued on Page 15)

~Ruideso-Lodge and-sold-it-to the -— ~—

/3

|

- establishied” amr—Ord"Fellows
-campon Cedar-Creek-and brought » .

'b.-.“t..‘ .\‘ ™

Ty EATIN

service Ruidoso. The plant was

y operated 'by Bob. and ~Win |
g Woollard for many years,

The first visitors to Ruidoso
brought their camping outfits and
camped. Later summer homes

. were built and some of thoseearly |
day summer residents were:

Judge E.L. Medler, Dr, W.W.

*Phillips, Dr. Parker Kallock,
g Benson - Howell and his wife’s
i parents the Campfields, Dr. B.F, X
Jenness; C.C. Martin, Johnson, |

Miss Ola and the Melvin Grays,

@ Guy Nickson, Judge Sweeney,
- O:H.. Palm, there are more. but
this is just to name a few,

Miss Amelia Chruch and her

“-sister built rent cabins; J:C. Dufe ¢
‘operdted a bakery, Warren
- Barrett operated 4 grocery store,
and H.E. Gatewood operated a

store in a partial dugout and
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The site for Fort Stanton
named after Captam Henry
Stanton, who was killed in a'f lght
with Mescaleros, was selected in

"Mareh, 1855, by General John

Garland, It was to be 25 miles

~ upstream on the Rio Bonito from

its juncture with the Rio Ruidoso,
A force of three hundred men
hegan construction at the site and
it was officially commissioned

 Fort Stanton on May 4, 1855. By

1857,  the Fort was. well-
established and during this year
the post’s commander, Major
Jefferson Van Horne, directed the
survey which established the
boundaries for military reserve

| approxxmately 140 square miles.

p—— ,;_ o . o

-

F ort Stanton 120

destroyed by the conflicting

military forces had been reduced
to rubble by looters. Only the
stone walls and adobe mounds
remained of the fort which had
once been described as ‘‘the best
quarter in the Army at the time,”
During the next year, Colonel
Carson enforced his orders to
retain and pursue the Mescalero
and Gila Apache, although he
personally was opposed to using
military force to secure peace. By
the end of the first year of the
Indian campaign, U.S. troops had
captured and incarcerated over
7000 Indians at Bosque Redondo
Reservation. With the
simultanegus _campaign _

On August 2, 1861, during the
early days of the Confederate
invasion, of the New Mexico
territory, Lt. Colone]l B.S.
Roberts, Commander at Fort

~ Stanton, received a report that
. Union Troops under Major Isaac

Lynde had been routed, that Fort
Fillmore, near Mesilla, had been

‘capttred and that a Confederate

force was advancing toward his
position. Roberts immediately
ordered the post abandoned, had

M..._gheahw!dmgs-an&stores fired-and

began moving his two companies
toward Albuquerque.

- Upon learning of the abaondn-
ment of Fort Stanton, the Con-

. fedefate commander, Lt. Colonel

John Baylor, ordered a company
of men under Captain Walker to
occupy the position,

The troops, primarily con-
cerned with the military cam.
paign, were ill-equipped to check
the Indians. Baylor wrote his
commanding officer that he was
totally unable to wage war against
both groups simultaneously. The
post was fiinally abandoned when
it was determined that the
isolated location could hold no
strategic importance for the

Confederates. a

By August, 1862, the Caon-
federate troops had been driven
from New Mexico ferritory after a
decisive battle at Glorieta Pass on
March 27-28,

Swift reoccupation of the
territory by Union forces was

dccomphshed mainly through the
e Lof—GeloneLJames—Garlewn—Fort—StanlﬂHhe—Navajos -had- -

General John. West the maJor
resistance from Indian groups
was borken, although further
sporadlc incidents were often
serious.

Carleton’s efforts to relocate the
Indians at Bosque Redondo never
proved successful, primarily

because the groups encamped
there were completely displaced
{rom their native environment

and hatl torely entirely on the 0.S.
o :lrg”ﬁ 9

‘%

Col, N.4.M. Dudley

Agency for supplies and foodstuffs
which were often inadequate. By
November, 1865. all the Apache

Indians had abandoned the
Bosque Redondo and continued
sporadic raids until 1870, when
they returned to a reservation at

years old

This was the Post Traders' Store at Fort Stanton a long, long time

ago.

post was being maintained oply at
enormous expense and “speakmg
froma rmlltary point of view, Fort
Stanton is wholly unnecessary.”
However, the failure at Bosque

Redondo and the return of the *

Mescalero brought renewed
pressure for the continued
existence of a military post in the
area.

Of even greater significance
was the fact that the small

" populatioh of the area, being

wholly isolated from a nearby
trade center, had become almost
entirely dependent on the Fort as
a source of supplies and as a
market for the products,

Fort Important

especially grain and cattle, which
they were able to offer for sale.
In 1869, with the military
establishment secured for the
present at least, the new sanction
of Lincoln as a political entity, and
economic pressures bringing
outsiders to seek new op-
portunities in New Mexico, Lin-
coln County began to prosper.
Figuring significantly in this
growth was the availability of
excellent farm and grass land,
and the lucrative contracts for
cattle and grain to be had from
both Fort Stanton and the
Mescalero Reservation.

“und thé California Column.

also abandoned the area by 1868.

- After-taking- command of -thé —— —These events were critical to the

_m ruins.

Department of New Mexico from
Colonel E.R.S. Canby on Sep-
tember 18, Colonel Carleton
turned his attention to the Indian
problem in southern New Mexico.
As part of his campaign, he or-
dered five companies of New

Mexico volunteers under Colonel
- hrmtopher=€arsun“m=recccupr"

Fort Stanton in an.effort to subdue
the Mescalero Apache who were
continuing "to raid in the

| southeastern.part of the territory.

When Colonel Carson arrived at
Fort Stanton on October 12, he
found the Fort standing virtually
What hadn't been

later history of Lincoln County
and especially the village of
Lincoln As the depredations of the
Indians began to wane with the
presence of the militarry and the
establishment of a reservation
somewhat removed from Fort

Stanton, pressure was developing
iy ‘Washington to close the FPort. -
Although Fort

Stanton had
originally been established to
protect civilian settlements along
the Rio Grande and the Jornada
Del Muerto, 15 years of occupation
had not proven its value. In his
annual report of 1869-1870, the
Secretary of War stated that the

CORTEZ GAS & l
RAY BELL OIL

L

Known as Ruildoso junction, this picture was taken where

Hollywood is now located. The sign says ‘‘Ruidoso Jct .,

Gas and Qil.”

Groceries,

>

Jicarilla P. Q.

(EDITOR'S NOTE: The story o&

communities in Lincoln County is
pretty wéll told in a history of Post
Offices. This article appeared in
the 1962 **A History of Lincoln
County Post Offices,”” wrilten
primarily by postmmasters at the

time or former postmasiers or

persons closely associated with
Post Offices.)

JICARILLA

Roy Harmon
A small community of placer
miners and ranchers in northern

Lincoln County petitioned the Post

*Office Department in 1892 for an

office to be named for the
surrounding mountains. On
December of that year Jicarilla
was established with Jacob
Weisher as the first Postmaster.
The office continued until
Novemher 12, 1927 when it was
discontinued only to be re-
established a little l&ter and again
abolished. Though the community
is still indicated on state maps it
no longer has a post office and the
people of the area are served by a
star route.

~ofig
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Commissioners

Jan. 11,1800
White Oaks Eagle) z

Proceedings of the Hon. Board
of County Commissioners held at
Lincoln, Lincoln County, New
Mexico, January 2nd A.D. 1900.
Present:

Hon.
member

D. Perea, Sheriff

[.LL. Analla, clerk

There being no quorum Board
adjourned till 1 p.m.

No quorum being present at 1
p.-m. it adjourned til January 3rd,
1900 at 9 a.m.

At 9 a.m. January 3rd, 1900, no
quorum being present, it ad-
Journed till 1 p.m.

At 1 pm. no guorum being .
present it adjourned till 7 p.m.

Al 7 pm. no quorum being
present it adjourned till the fifth
Monday, January 29, A.D. 1900
Attest:

I.LL. Analla, clerk

Geo. Sena, Deputy

Estolano Sanchez, Member of the
Board

Estolano Sanchez,

Adverﬂéements

Picked at Random:
WHITE OAKS EAGLE
Jan. 4, 1900

White Oaks Passenger Line-
Good rigs. Careful drivers. Regu-
lar trips daily to the road.

Three Rivers Store.

The Little Casino-White Oaks
Avenue, Billiards, Pool and
Clubrooms.

Levi Strauss & Co's Spring
Bottom Pants

A Monster Devil Fish

(White Oaks Eagle)

“'Destroying its victim, is a type
of constipation. The power of this
marvelous malady if felt on
organs and nerves and muscles
and brain There’s no health till
it's overcome. But Dr. King's New
Lafe Pills are a safe and certain
cure. Best mn the world for
Stomach, Liver, Kidnevs and
Bowels. OUnly 25 cents al M.G.
Paden's Drug Store "

Names from Pasi

Jan. 1800 F.1 Marsh—supt. of

=~ ———-O/d Ab& mine. ~Arthur P Green--
working foreman of Old Abe Hon.
W F. Blanchard. Probate Judge

Jan. 4,1900
E BE B

TRk Ak ke drdek Kb A Ak A

Barnett

BEAUTIFUL
"FLOOR .
COVERINGS
OF ALL
TYPES

GATEWAY — RUIDOSO
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- Carrizozo blooms after 1000 -~

dauaghter of John A, Haley and mailing a dog to his friend, Les head the offu:e on the death of
Georgia Orme Johnson, Ethh Harmap, at White Oaks, Dogs are Mrs., Gumm in May 1933. After
- Crawford and Mrs, Era B. Smith, , not accepted for mailing now and - serving ten years he resigned and

have seen them The Riley family

'CARRIZO
£9 still is a promlnent and well-

Roy Harmon
The Carrizozo post office was known family in Lincoln County.

........ - named for the —spamsﬁTf%eyareMrﬁTﬂﬂpencer—Sr—Wh&SEWed as-clerks-in-the-office—it-would-be-interesting to—know—Mrs; Era B-Smithwho had served

**Carrizozo” meaning tall dry
grass which once grew in the
surroundmg country and for
named. Shortly after the turn of
the century Frederick M. P. Hunt

and Mrs, Will Ed Harris, Mrs.
Nellie Riley, his widow, lived until
the latter part of 1958 and the
character and esteem in which
this loveable lady was held is
summed up by the name by which

e, m_been.nmmopeihan*ahsxdxngandnmﬂmﬂm ated a_drug..

TTTTThecame

- Carrizozo’s
Posl,master His commission was
dated May 31, 1902. Prior to this
time the area had been served by
the g¥hite Oaks and Nogal post
offices.

Carrizozo probably would have

junction with the old Capitan
branch of the E! Paso and
Northeastern Railroad if the
people of White Oaks had
cooperated with Mr, Eddy who
was having the railroad built
north to tie in with the Rock Island
Railroad, Because of the high cost
of securing rightvef-way through
White Oaks, Mr. Eddy decided to
by-pass the town of -White Oaks
and start the town of Carrizozo.
Records in the office show that

“Hunt served until March 1907, ¢

Ira O. Welmore, a man who had
taken a great interest in the
building of Carrizozo succeeded
Lacey and served until 1909 when
William Riley, a long-time

resident of Lincoln County, was
appointed. Riley was an excellent
penman and the records kept by
him are unusually beautiful and
have been admired by many who

Irst

Nenn

“In- Au_gust -.1.9._12 Arthur J.
Rolland, a prominent Carrizozo
business man, was named
Postmaster. He served only until
Dec. 1913, but he was a

under him still reside in
Carrizozo.

The Lincoln County News
carried an interesting item in 1913
“concerning the parce] post service

which had been established on

§ pnevarwxdelr known”’“Mamma“ —January 1 of that year. The article

fold. of John Baird of Carrizozo

Just when that part of the parcel
service was discontinued, In 1922
Haley was succeeded by Mrs.
Elizabeth 0. Gumm, a well-known
teacher whose husband was a
member of a ploneer Whlte Oaks
family. - '

Herman E. Kelt was named to

as clerk under John Haley became
acting postmaster, Mrs, Smith
edited the Lincoln County News
but found that it was too much to
carry on both jobs sa she resigned |
and Herman Kelt was re-
‘appointed. CarriZozo became a
second class office .

store in Carrizozo until his death
in 1947. His willingness to help
everyone, especially those less
fortunate, made him one of the
most loved men who ever lived in
Lincoln County.

The year 1914 saw a well known
newspaper man appointed
Postmaster. He was John A.
Haley and at the time he assumed
charge of the office he was busily
engaged in publishing ayear book
about Lincoln County. The book
contained pictures of scenes of
Lincoln County and of its leading
citizens, a brief history of the
county and arlicles about each
community, all of which become
more interésting as time goes by.
During Haley's term as
postmaster, the post office was a
central accounting office for
Lincoln County. Aileen
Lindamood, who is the present,
postmaster at Alto, is the

- e e B bl | iz
barly -day (‘arrlzozo is shown here from in 'front of ng g Bar.
'I'he bunldmg at extreme ri ght was the Post (‘)fﬁce, .
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A number &d disastrous forest
- fires have oteurred in the Lincoln

National Forest the past 25 years,

It was 25 years ago that Smokey

with - his feet scorched in the

,' - Thé Capitan Gap fire oceurred

" burned over 12,890 acres, :
Smokey is now at Ghost Ranc
where he will spend his remaining
days-with burial after his demise
to be at a new Smokey Be: Park
in Capitan,

X 01 May 7, 1950, -

PEETTL o e

The Gavilan Canyon fire in 1967,
#lso in May, in the Ruidoso area
burned oyer, 1,740 aeres in the
Smokey Bear Ranger District.

Three maijor fires hit- the - ‘

i Mayhill Rawger District in_the

the Bear, then a cub, was found )

Capitan-Gap-area-in-a-fire- which - Clouderoft District occurred April
24, 1967, destroying, 2
timber,

dleton Canyon. of the Mayhill

acres were burned over.

fire in the Mayhill District
whacked out 14,500 acres. Weed
lost several buildings in that fire,

o~

N ' ' '

es alWays present

in April of 1953,

The Cottonwood area fire in the
Guadalupe District, July 2, 1974,
affected 16,000 acres.

A major fire occurred in the
Bear Creek area on White

ountain; June 24, 1928. This was

~before the days of aerial-born
2400 acres &, slurry and specialized fire-
fighting groups whisked around
the country by air.

Forest fires were fought the
hard way in 1928. They still are--
there's no easy way.

oo, Al

A lesser fire occurred in Pen-
istrict, April 26, 1956, when 5,825

The Danley Cariyon Yire in the

In April 1974, the Spring Canyon

M w
T Y
-
- ;

1930s. ‘The first was in Allen
Canyon, May 31, 1951, where
15,820 acres were burned over.
Also in the Mayhill ‘District, in
Circle~Cross Canyon area, 25,874
acres were destroyed or nearly so

—

SHAMEFUL )
(1500 White Oaks Eagle),™
Nogal! the beautiful little
mountain town 17 miles south of
White Oaks, is by the new mail

_schedule, almost entirely without 33

mails from  any direction,
Everything akin to a system is out
of joint and Nogal does not get
mail, often, for two or three days
together. A letter mailed at
Capitan must go to Alamogordo,
the present distributing office for
all that section of the country and
- then come buck again on the af-
ternoon train before going to
Nogal, which is only 9 miles from
Capitan. S
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Firefighting methods have changed -in the Lincoln National
Forest. Airplanes help today. This shows firefighters keeping the
fire out of a dangerous windfall in the Bear Creek Fire on White
Mountain in June of 1928, Photo by U.S. Forest Service.

sept. 12, 1900

’ :White Qaks Eagle)

ALL CHILDREN BETWEEN
THE AGES OF FIVE AND
SIXTEEN MUST GO TO
SCHOOL.

.
o

*
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This is the old Alto Post Office before aulomobiles were 1n use.

The old structure was torn down

only this year and had been

abandoned for a number of years.

Forest history

The Lincoln National Forest c¢-
ame into being on July 6, 1902,
according to a forest fact sheet
provided by the district
headquarters in Alamogordo.

The Sacramento National
Forest sprang into being on April
24, 1907, and it was on July 2, 1908
that the Guadalupe National
Forest and the Sacramento
National Forest were consolidated
as the Lincoln National Forest.

The Guadalupe National Forest
was formed April 19, 1907,

Some 10 ‘yea’rs later, June 8,
1817, the Alamo National Forest
was transferred to the Lincoln

Rt b S B B R S T R RV VY

<
National Forest and the entire
forest 1s now kriown as Lincoln
National Forest and 1s divided into
four ranger districts.

Apr. 26, 1900
(White Uaks Eagle)

“Bomita i1s enjoying a healthy
industrial growth, both n
agriculture  and maining ac-
tivity ** says A.C. Austin.

Sept. 6, 1900, Hondo Local News
(White Oaks Eagle)

.."'The fine floyring Mill of
Timoteo Annalla is nearing
completion and shortly we will be
able (o get as good flour as the
Colorado Climax right here.

X

The people of Lincoin County and the

. newly created counties of Chaves and

- Eddy were 200 miles from the nearest
bank or railroad when we entered the
scene. They needed a bank . . . and we
came to satisfy that need. Today, we still

-

need each other.

We've

L4

With You Since
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July, 1890 !}

- Bank of -Roswell - Erected 1894 )

r | In 1899, we fransferred from a Territorial
Charter to a Federal Charter, changing
our name to The First Natidnal Bank of
Roswell. For 85 years we’ve been working

THE FIRST mngh);?-u : doing a lot of growing,
NATIONAL '

BANK OF .

ROSWELL e

BANK

ROSWELL
HAGERMAN & DEXTER

member F.D.I.C.

a member of the Bank Securities family
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. celebrate’ the Coronado Cuarto until she fell on the Methodist

-

g "
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-

Thu‘;y-f ive years ago a group of her seemg eye dog, she made her well, The Lincoln Fiesta Com-
Lincoln County citizens decided to Way . around Roswell real well mittee planned the program,
The “Kid” pageant was, ad-

irst pageant was big event ----

*Mayordomo®’ and Spanish OldsmoblleandBulck) of Capltan
Dances; Roman Maes, folk Capitan Motor Service (Dodge
dancmg, E.H. Miranda, and T.C, and Plymouth sales and service, -

lg uKid

program emphasizing the life and
times of Billy the Kid.

It was in 1940 that the first

“Billy the Kid -Lives Again™

pageant was presented in a

platform on the main street of old
"~ Lincoln town.

Star of the 1940 production was
Peter Hurd, world renowned
artist and long-time San Patricio
resident who also operates the
Senfineal Ranch.

Other events marked the first

*

]

H

proved fatal. This was long after
1940, g

Branding and bronc rxdmg were
part of the first event’ celebratmg
the Centennial.

Street shows were presenteda-
including:

. *The Mayordomo,' Gilbert and
Sullivan Opera in English and
Spanish. -

‘Lucy Lepyer Shaw and 100 NYA -
Camp Capiltan Girls presented the
opera.

" celebration--a tradition ___Bert Pfingsten of the Bonito

Exciting History-making Lincoln
County War Scenes., A Rapid - fire
Dramatic Broadside.”

It remains so today,

Pageant actors in 1940 were -

Peter Hurd playing Billy the Kid;
" Fred Pfingsten, Patrick F
Garrett; Pinkney Mlller, Major
William Brady; Buck Nosker,
Alexander McSween; Louise Fritz
Ferguson, Susan E. McSween;
Felix Ramey, John Chisum; Edna
Pfingsten Purcell, Sally Chisum;
Ray Bishop; Bob Ollinger;

—Centennial” with a~ pageant- gnd—churchstepson&daynheran;umesrw vertisedﬂnJLhe-program --'‘In Ten__Romero, —concessions;—E.H.—Capitan;—El—Cibola- Aiotelﬁ—

Ramey, brone riding, buggies and Carrlzozo, La Paloma Bar,

teams; Bert Bonnell, ox teams;
Blandmg Sloan, producer author,
“Billy the Kid”; Fred W,
Pfingsten, cowboys; Mildred

Taylor, publicity and F‘rank and .

Lucille Bellew,

"Advertisers in the program'

mclpded Titsworth Co., Inc,
Capitan, City Garage -(Chev.rolet,

William Bonney Bar, both of
Lincoln, Penfield Store (Est: in
1877 by Tunstall-McSween and
others.) -

-In fact, 1840 was a pretty big

" yearin 0ld Lincoln town wherea

traditional program has followed
even until today--right soon, as a
matter of fact.

“which has been followed each year valley was general chairman of
except some of the war years and the event, Today he remembers it
just afier. __ -

Juanita Gomez, DeJuvina Max-
well: D. Kusianovich, Col. N7A. M.
Dudley; Joanna Penfleld Anita
(symbol of 1940 youth); Buck

Today, the first weekend in
August, the *“Kid"” pageant is
presented from a permanent
stage and selting in old Lincoln
town. It draws people by the
hundreds.

. The first one also featured a,
“ traditional mexican wedding at
San Juan Church with Leo Pena |

, and Mary "Gonzales serving as 38
bride and groom. The High Mass 3§
and ceremony were conducted by
Father Salvalore. San Patricio
choral singers participated and
the Carrizozo Sisters of Mercy.
Arrangements were by the
Carrizozo Women's Club.

A vocal solo and addresses were
.conducted one day, with **Oh Fair
New Meéxico” sung by the com-

poser Elizabeth Garrett, daughter Bert Pfingsten, apple grower and
of the famed sheriff, Pat Garretl. papmer, wgass bom%pbou% where the

Elcu s thGarretl was blind, but - Bonito Dam is now located when
that d:dn’t $law her down. With hat area had a town-Bonito City.

Nosker, “Buckshot' Bill Roberts.’
Felix Ramey, Gov. Lew Wallace,
and the Horrell Brothers, T.J.

Youngblood, Ray Garcia, P |
Zamora and Fletcher Hal! |
Many other Lincoln area people’ §
participated. g
On the last day, and Old Timer - iy
| parade was staged, Horse Races__
were staged in the morning, %
Sen. Louise Coe of Lincoln
County was chairman of the
Lincoln County Fiesta of Cuarto
Centennial, Clinton P. Anderson
was listed as manager-director,
On the Lincoln Fiesta Com- © o
mittee were A.T. -Pfingsten, ‘

. ’ chairman; Mrs. T. Lara[rpsg. O S - ‘
Lifetime Bonlla area resldent, s::;:ltlz;g: 1(5)1;;. amétahlag:enstggé | . Carrizoo, 2 very, very lorg time ago, .

- May 24, 1900
(1900 White Oaks Eagle) joined wlth J.E, Wharton to form
J.F, Bonham of Las Cruces a new law co-partnership.

manager: Edward Penfield,
program; Edna Purcell, ad-
vertising; Lucy Lepper Shaw,

A RIP ROARIN’ SALUTE TO LINCOLN COUNTY FRON\

“OUR REGION'S mUST UPTO-DATE BanH

Over here in Roswell we have a big spread with 6 friendly
locations to serve ‘Ihe people of the area. Let us “ride herd -on your

financial doin’s, is pertier than a hew
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[ born calf and as efficient as a mail order milkin’ machine, You'll zZip A
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Y ALL COME SEE U'ST
ROSWBLL STEITB B@“K

The ultramodern bank with the old western friendliness.

through our Tel-Air system when you bank from your car —we have
the fastest windows in the west our Teller-24 system gives you a
service no other bank in the area has. . . bank any day of the year
. . .any hour of theday. Saddle up withthe Best in the West.

The Ultra-modern bank with_the old western friendliness.
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- Corona means ‘crown’

‘Corona, from the Spanish word
meaning crown, is truly a crown,
as it is located at the highest point

Coast, via Chicago and the
southern route by rail on the

L4

- L

elevation of 6,666 feet, It is
situated in the geographical
center of New Mexico and is a
crossroads for U.S. Highway 54
and State Road No. 42. These
highways connect Santa Fe and

* Albuguerque, by the most direct

route, with Roswell, Artesia,
Carlsbad and other southeastern
Texico towns.

Y =
*

willis R. Lovelace came lo the
Corona area and ranched in the
early 19005, He was the brother of
Mrs. Gardenhire of near Capitan
and the uncle of Mrs. Jack Shaw of

"apitan. Holt Lovelace was Willls
L dsomrbefore- his-

-Ovelace's pramn +
untimely death in a plane crash.

Colorful -
Lincoln
County

c—fines, —at an

|__of one hu

The original ‘“‘Corona” was
located at the reservoir, and there
was a butcher shop. saloon. and

 between New York and the Pacific general store. When the railroad

came through and put the switeh
here, they moved everything to
the present site from the
reservoir. Corona nestles in the
woodland covered hills adjacent
to the Cibola Natrional Forest
overlooking Gallo Lake, where
upon their arrival the settlers
found peace and plenty in one of
the last frontier towns. Being in
historic Lineoln County, the
founding and early days of the
village are a series of exciting
events, and Billy the Kid was a
frequent visitor to this section

In 1899, this village began its
development as a cowtown: this
section of the country is one of the
best ranges in New Mexico for
livestock. The village developed
from an earlier settlement known
as Red Cloud Post Office, located
on the Cook and Greathouse
Ranch a few miles southwest of
the present townsite. The Post
Office was on the old San Antonio-
L.as Vegas stage rolte, and a trek
ed forty miles over
the mpuntains by oxen and mule
teams was required to obtain
supplies and provisjons. - -

The exact date of the first
seltlers in this vicinity is rather
hazy, but Mr. C.M. Bryan told of
the killing of Jim Carlisle by Billy
the Kid at the old Red Cloud Post
Office in the spring of 1881. The
officers of Lincoln County learned
that Billy the Kid was stopping at
the ranch and decided to surround
and capture him. A posse of
twenty-two men was formed, and
arriying at the ranch at night,
they askeg.the Kid to surrender in
the morning since he could not
escape. He refused and asked who

told that it was Deputy Sheriff Jim
Carlisie of White Qaks. he invited

. the officer to come in and talk

things over because Carlisle was a
personal friend of his.

The Kid and Carlisle became
slightly fintoxicated, and that
afternobn the posse caught

Greathouse, outside and ordered

This is a photo of Corona about 1900. Buildings pictured are, left

11.) Bonds Dance Hall.

\

to right, 1.) “Bob" Step and *‘Zeb" Brooks (Clint Sultemeier's
. uncle) Saloom; 2.) Corond Trading Co. General Merchandise (Car
owned by Bob Willingham) ! 3.) Corona Stockman's Bank owneg, by
Brinkley (Brickley?) Alfred Ervin worked there, and had an
~insurance company in Santa Rosa today. 4.) Post office; 5.) Dr.'s
office, hospital and living quarters;.6.) Whiskey-The Road to Ruin
~ owned by Jim Davidson; 7.) Barber Shop and undertaker owned by
- Emmett Davidson; 8.) Eating House owned by Jolly: 9.) McPorter
- Store; 10.) Assay office owned by Benjamin Adams and coroner;

was in-charge-of the posse. When

_ _constructed from ]

him to send Carlisle out or they
would start shooting. The Kid
overheard the conversation and
answered, "'If a shot is fired, I will
kill Carlisle’’. Some one fired,
afterwards supposed
accidentally; Carlisle jumped
through a window, and was shot
and killed by the Kid. During the
ensuing excitement the Kid broke
for his horse and miraculously
escaped the posse. Mr. Bryan said
that later Billy said that Carlisle
was the only man he ever killed
over which he felt any regret or
shame.

The grave of Carlisle remains
unmarked neai the site of the old
Red Cloud Post Office, and it has
been suggested that an

- appropriate marker be set at the

grave in honor of him and those
fearless men like him who first
brought law and order to New
Mexico.

From about 1879 to 1922, mining
for copper and lead was carried on
in Red Cloud Canyon and on the
east slope of the Gallinas
Mountains, a few miles sguthwest
of Corona. In the early days of this
activity, the ore was hauled by
wagon to El Paso and Socorro o
the smelter. .

In 1902, the railrcad was
completed through Corona, and
shipments of ore were thed made
by rail until 1922 when the mines
were closed. The heighth of this
development about three hundred

men were employed in the mines |,

Many prospect holes and old mine
shafts.and dumps are visible from
the Red Cloud road just below the
Red Cloud Canyon picnic grounds
built for our use by the Forest
Service. Today some mining is
still carried on but not so large a
scale as formerly Bill Heim built
a mill, and in 1951 he shipped his
first load of rare earth material
called bestnasite. The [(irst
commercially produced

Dbestnasite in tht Uated States -

comes [rom New Mexico, the
property owned by Bill Heim

An important part of the early
history of C(orona was lhe
construction of the railroad by
Phelps Dodge Corporation in
order to reach the coal fields at
White Oaks  Then 1t was
discovered a Mr Eddy had been

puiting their teg, and the veins of

coal were not extensive White
Oaks was by-passed and the hine
completed to Santa KRosa A
branch line was bwlt 1o the
Dawson coal mines which are now
exhausted.

In 1899, the old K1 Paso and
Northeastern  Ratroad was
Paso to
Carrizozo and ended there until
three years later when the line
was extended to Santa Rosa lo
connect with the Rock Island Tins
section later became the F| Pasp
and Southwestern and now s &
part of the Southern Pacific
system.

The real development of Corona
dates from 1902 when the railroad
was completed. and a station was
established.

Prior to the settling and fencing
of the country, Gallo Lake alwdys
had water in it as stock kept it well
tramped. Now it is quite dry most

of the time, but formerly it was
winter headquarters for all of the
cattle thieves in the country. The
informant would not divulge the
names of
furnished chuck and horsefeed to
“this gathering of renegades as he

the persons who

. who was killed

i
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This is Corona as it appeared in about 1909. Corona always has

been a livestock center--centering around the Cor '
en ona Trading Co.-
originally the Charles lifield Co. ne e

| Mailman kifled

the victim's husband shot the
young man in the store, Tom
DuBois was situng on the ghion

states that some of them are still
living. A cattle buyer once
happened upon a corral full of
calves, one cow, and one bull He
ask the man where all the cows
were The man thought a minute
and then replied, ""Esta papa’ no
necessita anna’’

In 1890, the mail carrier who
carried the mail from White Oaks
1o Red Cloud on horseback, was
killed 1n Red Cloud Canyon by a
man who resented the attentions
of the mailman to his wife About
sixty days after the murder the
body was found by a posse among
whom was his father-an-law His
hoots were removed, and the
remains of the body covered with
earth

The irst mail contract, by car,
let 1n the United States was from
Torrance to Roswell The men ran
the mail route in two-cylinder
Buick cars A cafe was built on the

Colorful
Lincoln
County

route which becamo famous as the
“Halfway House' ' where the
drivers and passengers ate lunch
By starting early and arriving late
the trip down was made in one day
and the return trip the next day

The first permanent buillding in
Corona was a rock bulding and
corral between the railroad and
Gallo Lake

The first piece of Tand pafented
In thts country 1s now owned by
Bryvan Hodge The eighty acres
were filed on by a lady who
wanted 1t for a stage stop

Colonel Frank A DuBois Sr
made the original plol of the
townsite of Corona The Colonel
came to New Mexico and by
remaming on the land for six
months and paying ut out at $1 25
per acre. he obtamned title under
the  Preemption Law He
dedicated the townsite of Corona
to the public, May 25. 1903, and the
streets were named for some of
the first residents

Colonel DuBois and his son.
Tom. put up a little store and
started the first buisness 1n the
now thriving little cowtown Later
they were joined by Frank Jr who
had just been married in the fall of
1904 1n Kansas.

The first grave in the town of
Corona was that of 3 young man
in the DuBois
Store. It seems he was cutting up
in the store, and in the fun hit a
woman in Lthe eye with an onion.
The victim's husband went after
the young man, shot and killed
him but not before the young man
shot him through the elbow. When

t

barrel. He was so surprised that
he just:folded up in1it. They had to
tear the barrel to pieces to get him
out of it

- Lawlessness prevailed for
several years in the community,
and 1n 1902, an unfortunate Senor
Diego was shot down 1n cold blood.
This was followed by another
murder which required action,

- and the murderer was brought to

trial 1n the historic old court house
at Lincoln The citizens became
aroused and elected Joe Simpson
Justice  of the Peace, and Jim
Welch Constable, to maintain law
and ordefr Those gentlemen
brought the first law to the
community, and their efforts were
not 1n vain The growing village
soon established an  enviable
reputation for law enforcement,
although there have been several
murders sincethal time The most
recent of thesé was 1n 1849, when
Pete Nalda was killed by a
Mexican National and his
companion after being forced to
si1gn several checks

One of the most famous killings
involved (wo doctors i1n an
argument over a patient At the
present ime the patient 18 still
living. and both doctors are dead
After the argument Dr. Stone took
a shot at Dr Davis and hit him in
the neck Stone was brought to
trial at Carrizozo and fournd "'Not
Gulty”™ Dr  Stone returned to
(‘orona by train about 6 p m | went
to the meat market for steak for
dinner Dr Dawvis. Lipped off by
Mrs Davis, followed him 1n and
was more accuratein hisaim Dr.
Stone died that night This was Iin
1921

They say the law has its funny
side. too. An example of this: one
mght two hombres had a fight.
They were fined two dozen bottles
of beer by the court. dismissed,

and they went home Nothing
appeared on the docket
Lincoln
County
The settlers were of haray
stock and deserve much

credit for remaining with their

homes and developing a
prosperous and peaceful
community. ’

(orona has a well developed
school system. ‘It is now a
consolidated rural school. At
times there have been schools at
Varney, Gallinas Mountain,
“Punkin Center', and later at
loon. Pupils from these districts

(Continued on Page 22)
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Nogal thr1v1ng in 1921

Nogal was a thriving com-
munity in 1921, if a school picture -
taken that year is any indication,

Mrs. Bernice Snell (Edgar J.)
Jones of Quarter Circle X Ranch
of "Truscott, Texas, writes about

the photo. -

+ Shesays,in part Mrs. Bernice
Nickels was teacher. She had 48
pupils and had to have 50 pupils
before they could hire two
teachers, had all eight grades and

- the primary class. .

The 7th and Bth grades used to
help with the Jower grades in the
back room.

We had 7th and 8th grade

gevgraphy together ana also
history and 6th grade geography.
together and also history. |

% week.

-- -m&ﬂd-'«vau!drhm‘e-eaciww

Gatewood house and every

student was always ready to go for
- water, Then we would line up to
geta drink out of the same dipper,
I can name most of -the pupils.in

| who are not plctured

Elmer Hust is one and Agenes
Mae- Snell is another that I
rem,ember.

Back row, Mary Roads holding
Dorthy Nichels, Edith Littleton,

Ruth Gatewood, Kirk Snell, Minor -

Roads; Edgar Martin, Paul
Roads, Ray Hust (I think.)
Second row, left, No. 1, not sure;
Ada Gatewood, Dallas Cochran,
Oliver Snpell, Bernice Snell,

Dorthy Peacock Amle Helrns.___

Albert Helms.
Third row, left, Katie Whitaker,

Marjie Nlckels Raymond th- -
Homer

tleton, . Ernest Snell,
‘Roads, Luncinda May, Charlotte

thtleton, Ernest Petty
Bottom row, Johnnie May
{visitor), Charles Roads, Walter
May, Billy Nickels, Carl Petty,
Gatewood boy (I don’t remember
his name),

2 ot Ca IJ . ..

I am sure Mrs. Nlckels would - |

tell you a good story about the two

years“she taught there, But she - s s i1

was a wonderful teacher and
really bad the children's interest
in mind... .

Bernice Snell Jan.es

"
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The first. store at Nogalv-m 1877-15 pictured with many resxdents
of thearea on the porch, Vests and watch chains were in vogue,

~Lower-Penascs P-0:

We had a v.ood stme in the

center of the building and on real
cold days we would gather around ™~

the stove to study. We earried
drinking water from ;the old

OUR PUBLIC SCHOOLS
ln Prof, E.S. Coombs

(EDITOR'S NOTE: The story of
communities in Lincoln County is
preity well told in a history of Post
Offices. This article appeared in
the 1962 *A History of Lincoln
4County Post Offices,"” written

primarily by postmasters at.the

time or former postmasters or
persons closely associated -with

N~

ol

that he turned the job over to his
wife, Mrs. Dora M. Mathews on
Jan. 21, 1885. She held the office
until April 26 of the next year
when James F. Hinkle recewed'
the appointment. This wasg the
beginning of holding public office
and - keeping public trust for

Hipkle

He-

later

gained

(1900 White Oaks Enagle)

“The altendance during the
ronth ending Dec. 22nd., 1825, s e Sl
was 185 “The —much- m"uwde‘i““_ Canis”
conditions of the primary grades <SS
under Miss Ula Gilmore has been
relieved by the employment of a
third teacher, Miss Daisie
Nabours, who will assist Miss
Gilmore in the primary depart-
ment,"””

“Miss Nabours is one of thcoln _ e :
County's most successful young "

teachers, and the Eagle is pleased This 1921 photograph shows Bernice Nickels 1aught 'eight,

(o learn that her services have
rneured in thi e pupils at the Nogal Schoo! when grades. Pupllsarc identified in the
been: procured in this school, | accompanying story.

o ArthurJ'Merring

| meol County-on November 11,

Post Offices,) . prominence in New Mexico a3

LOWERPENASCO - 4 governor of the state, He was also
- —inayor.of Roswell and president of -
A Post Office called “Lewer the First National Bank of

" was established in Roswell for many years.
Lincoln County records show

B. Mathews, the first” Melta Bryan as Postmaster from
' er, was a Deputy Sheriff March 19, 1887 to October 6, 1891
_ itne for Pat Garrett. He followed b}' Ella M, Mugg and
probably! was too busy to stay after her Mary B, March, July 7,
around to attend to Post Office ‘1894. The exact, date of the
matters for the records indicate discontinuation of the Lower
‘ Penasco office is not known but it

- did take place after it went into
Chavez County which was carved
out of Lincoln County, May, 1889,

0500500608355

LY

SILVER

b

-4 e tra

i
84

i

i

DOLLAR

DAILY 510 17
JIM BROWN, Manager

P S

RESTAURANT

DAILY 5 fo 11

- :—v --—D: P

e s e an o g

T T T T T T T X T T TETE T T TR T TR T T X T

~STEAKS “=SEAFO0D™
LAMBCHOPS | *
 MOUNTAIN TROUT -

'- ,RQSerVafioris"

30 Mmufes Easf On U S 70

Mg

[

| OWNED AND Orét-:‘,mfrian BY TiNN',lE'.MEﬁéANTILE co.

[ AR, A e e e

PILAR HERNANDEZ

Manager o,

[

"1 T

GLENCOE NEWMEXICO
Reservations




-+

/ANCHO
| L.(Jackie) Silvers
- § .. About the turn of the century a

_ - — ’ - y
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burros by the wood haulers, The
Brick Company, Plaster Mill and
associated employment gave

- few farsighted men came to the Ancho a good payroll and created

fertile Anc

County and seeing possibilities in
~ the gypsum hills near by filed on
mining claims, They organized a
company and called it “Gypsum
Products Company', The first
Postmaster, Frank J. Bush,
- opened the Post Office in a frame
| house near the plaster mill on
: June12, 1902, Finished products of
the mill were gypsum and cinder
‘block and these..materials were
used to build a company store and

. f When the store was completed the

houses for company employees..

In_-business and revenue-for the post

office,

In 1905 the railroad came to
Ancho. The post office was made a
money order office and Eichel a
nearby postoffice was closed and
all the supplies sent to the Ancho
office, Eichel was a section on
theSouthern Pacific Railroad and
boasted a rock crushing planf so a
good number of its workers
became patrons. Most of the
Postmasters serving during these
years were employees of the

Company, some of them Company.

Post Office was moved into ‘one

! corner, " o

Il Ancho flourished during these

* years. Frank Morris came from

. Texas.with a small herd of cattle
and liked the looks of the valley,
He found a place for his cattle and
prepared to contest the claims on
which the town was located. To
forstall him Bush made the
coveted claim into a town site and

. avoided the contest, In 1905 Ancho
was secured and still occupies this

Bosques of Jowa moved in and
established a brick plant. The
kilns were fired with wood

e Roswell

ARTHUR J. MEIERING

In the spring of 1872 Van C.
Smith let his friends and
correspondents know that he had
named his place on the Rio Hondo,
in Lincoln County, “Roswell”. He

- further directed all those writing
to him henceforth to use
“Roswell’”” on his mailing address.
He pointed out that if mail was

~

carried to various points along the
“§tream’and thus cause delay and
inconvenience. .
Apparently Van, .C. Smith had
pretty good luck getting his mail
1o Roswell. On August 20, 1873 he
was able to persuade the post-
master general serving under
President U.S. Grant to establish

brought in by horses, mules and.

Store Managers, some with other
duties.

By the tiine Thomas J. Straley
became Postmaster in 1917 a
separate part of the Company
Store was alloted'to the Post
Office and in that year the brick
company sold to the Phelps Dodge
Corporation of Arizona, Under
their expansion program a sixteen
kiln plant was built at the cost of
$150,000,00 and the community
prospered until 1921 when the

1~ ——site.~During-this -period the plant went into the hands of 3
7‘ Straley was atill

Tecejver,
postmaster and moved the office
to a store he bought known as the
“Deal Place” at the west end of

included o

doubtedly a postmaster who knew
how to cut red tape and one who
was not likely to look to the Post

Office Department in Washington,™

D.C. for advice or a helping hand
in making decisions affecting his
office.

He was probably the first
postmaster who established *curb’
gervice delivery in the United
States. In 1878 he had a request

o ~~—directed-to-Rio-Hondo-it-may be—from-a lawyer—in- Lincoln; New

Mexico, by the name of A.A.
McSween, to have McSween's
mail placed in a special sack at
the Roswell post office so it would
not have to pass through the
Lincoln post office. He stated that
the request was made to expedite
his mail, however, it was
generally known in Lincoln that

as the _
was called Roswell Smith, so in
honor of his father he named the
post office and the village
“Roswell’’, Although Roswell
Smith had a post office and town
named after him there is no
record that he ever set foot in the
place, |

. —...fieorge R..Smith-followed-Van- -around-in-the newspaper-busin

1 C.Smith as postmaster of Roswell
i on February 11, 1874 (it is
* assumed that George Smith was
related to Van Smith.) F. G.

| Christy was appbinted postmaster
».1on February 16, 1877; he was in
- office just a little over a month as

{1 - Daniel Carroll received. the ap-
4 pointment on.April 25, 1877. The
”’% year 1877 must have been a.hard

one for postmasters of Roswell as

the records indicate that Post-

- master Danie] Carroll was only in,
office until June 8, 1877, when Van

- C. Smith took over again; Smith's
.. " second term was for a short

¥ duration as Marshall ‘A. Upson, and served until June 1893. While
- called Ash Upson, took ‘over on Cosgrove ‘was postmaster the
-+, August 6, 1877. So Roswell had present Chaves County was
- i four postmasters in 1877 the year carved out of Lincoln' County on
-« thatsawmuch violence take place May 28, 1889. Thus Roswell, the
¢ in Lincoln County, seme of it at- second largest city in New Mexico
R PR } K today, was conceived and born in
-y~ Marshall A Upson was un-Lincoln County | |

' . . , ’

-

o.urishes oo

town. Though hard times had
come upon the Brick Co.,
homesteaders began to drift in
and settle and there was a lively
business of cord wood shipping.
Mail was carried on a rural route
to Jicarilla until the Jicarilla
office was discontinued in 1920.

Upon the -death of Thomas
Straley, his youngest son, John C.,
became Postmaster. This was in
1937 and in 1938 the Straleys
bought the Ancho town site and
moved thé Post Office to its
present  location. During
depression years business was
done by bartering gold for
groceries. When World War I

_came John Straley joined the
Marine Corps and served with the

First Marine Division in the Pelilu
and Okinawa campaigns. Tending
his office in his absence was his
sister, Mrs. L. Silvers as acting
Postmaster. He returned after
two years and served as
Postmaster until his death in 1953,
. Continuing with the family
tradition, Mrs. Silvers became
Postmaster in the office that had
been headed continuously by
Straleys since 1917. The original
Post Office equipment purchased
by Frank Bush in 1902 and
subsequently purchased by each
succeeding postmaster is still in
use. The past few years has seen a
decline in receipts but the office

still serves ranchers and railroad.

workers and does a brisk business
in money orders. The first flag
flying at Fourth Class offices
under a néw ruling of the Post
Office Department was flown in
August 1954 at Ancho, and was
flown at half mast for Cordell
Hull, former Secretary of State.

office i Roswell with-Smith—NrcSweendid ot want the pest-
first postmaster, His father master at Lincoln to know too

much about his blsiness. Post-
master Ash Upson honored the
request and made up the special
mail sack for him and charged
him $1.50 a week for the service,

Before coming to New Mexico
Ash Upson was a reporter on the
New York Tribune. He dabbled

in New Mexico and did the ghost
writing for Sheriff Pat Garrett's
book, ‘*The Authentic Life of Billy
the Kid”. Ash Upson turned the
Roswell postmaster job over to
Joseph C. Lea on February 24,
1879, and sometime after that
went into the real estate business
with Pat Garrett under the firm
name of Upsdn and Garrett.
Joseph C. Lea was postmaster
of Roswell until April 23, 1884,
serving five years, the longest
term of any postmaster since the
establishment of the office.
William H. Cosgrove followed Lea

.
»
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WHEN Spencer C. Smith

came to Roswell In
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School teachers at Arabella,

““.ﬁ“" .

Johnnie (Bell) Bond (1938) ana

Louise Coe Payton, right, teacher at Steson School Ruidoso, 1939,

are pictured.

SAN PATRICIO
Louise Babers

A local legend tells how the
village of San Patricio was named
by a young Irish priest. The priest
was traveling through the country
with some hunters in the inid-
1800°8. The group left the plains
an started through the
mountains to the west. It was in
the early spring when they
arrived at a little settlement in a
valley and were struck with the
beauty of the green hills and
countryside. While they stayed to
rest awhile the priest said one day
“Let's call this little settlement
San Patricio in honor of St.
Patrick for this place reminds me
g0 much of my beloved Ireland.”
The name was to last and it is
today the only post office in the

+ Spencer C. Smith 1869-1927
+ Clifford G. Smith 1902-1965
+ Jerry N. Smith 1930 -

+ Clifford G. Smith 2nd 1952 -

ﬁamed by priest e

United States by the name of San
Patricio.

Soon after this .there was a
feeling of the need for a place to
worship and the 'settlers built a
church which was dedicated to St.
Patrick. More families came, land
was homesteaded, orchards were
planted and fields were plowed
and sown. The years passed, a
little store was opened and a
school started. In 1904 the
residents were awarded their own
post office and Ignacio Olguin, son
of one of the first settlers, became
postmaster and kept the office in
his home.

John C. West became the second
Postmaster in 1811. He was
married to a charming French
girl who had come to New Mexico
from France with her family.
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(Continued from Page21) ~
are brought” by bus to Corona,

| UIcolnCounty News Bicﬂmnuld Issve — Page, 22 - |

‘Pictured is a spectacular train wreck in the early railroad histo_ry
of Carrizozo—-occurring right in town. Spectators quickly gathered.

chools *®
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¥
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‘ .~ Fort Stanton boasts Lincoln

e na®

. County’s oldest Post Office.

- And the story of the Post Office
at Fort Stanton tells the story of

FX, % the old fort pretty well, Thel War
PR following is from—a_“History of —place —where ~Las—Cruces “was — established affer the Civil War it
Wil Offices”, subsequently built on the spot

Lincoln Post
published in 1962, Golden An-
niversary year in New Mexico,
This article is by M.J. and Zoe
Price with the conclusidn by
Frances Shaw of Capitan who

and who continues to call Capitan
home, : : -

. She and her husband Jack live
in the beautiful old Titsworth
home at “Capitan which they
purchased some years ago.

L. eee Oldest pbst office  eee |

- days of Coronado and Onate. It
was still the **Journey of Death"
-when Fort  Stanton
established. The road crossed this
Apache hunting ground about the

marked by the crosses’ of the
massacred, .

Ralph Emerson Twichell in the
second volume of his “Leading
Facts of New Mexico History”

Mescaleros in 1854,

© Fort Stanton was built in the
“high valley on the bank of the

Bonito. a few miles north of the
Junction in the scenic triangle

bounded on north by the Capitan

Bk FORTSTANTON-—

- .

A colorful past-not always
serene-reflects the history of the
reservation and the Post Office. It
begins in that period when
marauding bands of Apaches
terrorized the southern half of the
_ territory lying immediately north
extending down to the village, of the Mexican border and ex-
Many cattle and sheep are raised tendinds from their strongholds in

more lofty Sierra Blancas and
closed in by rolling foothills and
mesas between the two. Mountain
streams furnished an abundance
of water and fish. Deer, antelope
and bear were plentiful, For the
century of its history, Fort
Stanton has been singularly
sblessed in this arid-Jand, .
Less than two years after the

some travelling as far.as one jnqhishighland, and therecordsof the Sacramento Mountains on the Fort was established the. first

hundred four miles a day.

the railroad show that ninety to east and the Galiura rapge on the

- Postmaster, Davis S.Garland was

Corona has a large and well-- one hundred fifty car loads of westt The Jornado del Muerto appointed May 5, 1857, The office

. ..organ ized school plant compared —vattle; ninety —to-one— hundred —extending ~north~on " The €astern _
‘thirty-car loads of lambs and wool,. mesa of the Rio Grande from El Aug. and re-established within a 1901, tells of their riding hor-

to the ‘little oné room school
~located just in front of the present

-

- In;Corona was when Joe Simpson
hired Miss Lee Elkins to come and
live at the Simpson home as
teacher and governess. Private
instruction was the first and most

g ﬁge school, The first school held

S SEE Y

was -

f o i _ ]

thirty years during the life of Fort
,Stanton as an army post eleven
" postmasters are ljsted in the Post
‘Office Department records.
When the Post was re-

was the center of much gaiety. A

-

‘stage arrived daily from the

- thriving mining town of White
. Qaks, bringing the mail from the

north and carrying passengers.
Another stage brought mail twice
weekly from Mesilla, then Capitol
of Arizona and New Mexico
territories, over the route opened
by Colonel Miles. From Fort
Stanton another driver and horses
took the mail and passengers east
fifteen miles toward Roswell and

Mountains, on_the west by the —west-toward-Mesii:

- -

In the thirty year period in
which the army was stationed at
Fort Stanton, afterthe Civil War it
served as host to settlers traveling
from the end of the railroad at
LaJunta, Colo., by stage and
wagon train to southern New
Mexico and Arizona. The post
office served most of the present
Lincoln County. Mr. Fred W.
Smith, -a native of Waterbury,
Connecticut who_had worked on

“was “discontinued the following the V.V. Ranch of James Cree in

were shipped annually from Pasodel Norte as the main route month, September 15, 1857, with seback from the present townsite
Corona. More recently, however, for (rade and travel between GeorgeS. Beall as postmaster, In of Ruidoso and the ranch

trucks have taken over much of Mexico and Santa Fe from the
this and it is impossible to get an  FIOOERENETETX L EEL IR
accurate estimate, % churches weré" built, and "most

Water has always been a recentlythe Preshyterian Church
problem in Corona; the early was built, Z

““original " "Lincoln

1861, the. United States forces
burned and abandoned the Post on
the approach of -Texas troops
under General Sibley. After the
defeat ‘and withdrawal” of the
Confederate forces in 1863 the
Post was re-occupied by a
garrison of volunteers under Kit
Carson. |

The post office was again
established in April of 1868 with
Lawrence G. Murphy as post-
master, During these eleven first
years of the post office it is listed
as being in Dona Ana County. The
following year, 1869, saw the

headquarters of Liftle Creek to
Fort Stanton to pick up the mail
that had come from Mesilla via
Tularosa, With the exception of
the short intervals during the Civil |
War the Fort Stanton Post Office
has given continuous service to
the present day. -

The coming of better means of
{ransportation and roads, ended
Fort Stanton’s usefulness as a
military establishment. In the
year 1898 it began serving the
humanitarian function as a US.
Marine Hospital_for tubercular

_ County
~established. In the remaining

patients later becoming a US.
Public Health Hospital. -

& 4 - - - X T
. [ .‘. " L
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¢ -practical form of education along settlers brought water from Pinos  The saloons were among- the
the frontier, and was taken up by  Wells or White Oaks. In 1909, the first buildings in Corona. One of
other families. - railroad built a pipeline; with a ' the first was owned by J.T.
In 1903, citizens realized the contract for domestic purposes Davidsonin1912with a high board
need for a real school, so Col. only, the water users managed to facade on which appeared the
DuBois donated the west half of have a few lawns and gardens . letters spelling *Whiskey tHe
the block, and funds were - untill there wasashortageof rain, Road to Ruin”. This sign became
contributed by citizens for a little  and then the railroad would send famous and appeared in Popular
one room school with Miss Lena reminders that the water was t0 Mechanies Magazine and in
Grumbles, now living -in be uged only according to the various prohibition publications.
Carrizozo, as - teacher. She 'original contract. The railroad  The Stockman's State Bank was _
resigned;-and-Miss-Lottie-Bacher - ~formerty-shipped waterin Targe™ a “thriving institution in the
finished the year. She was (apk cars, from . the Tularosa = building now occupied by DuBois
“followed by Miss Donnte Franks-~ Basin., The water became nicely Drug Store. However, it moved in
who had come from Texas o join warmed on the slow climb to 1924 to Estancia when all the
her cousin, Lee Elkins. Miss Corona, and some of the Corona Torrance County banks had
Franks is retired and makes her men discovered that they made fajled. Later it was moved to
home in Corona where she is the wonderful bath tubs; until one Mountainair to take care of the big
friend of {hree gencrations of her  portly gentleman got stuck in the * business of pinto beans, and ge¥
students. In 1906, a larger school entrance to the tank; the train finally it became a part of the °7
was buill, and in 1910 an eight started moving, anc _—Citizens-State-Bank-of-Vaughn—g
room stone school building was  drowned. ~ Corona has progressed from ox "
constructed. This was lollowed Colortful teams and letters insaddle bags to
about 1921 by the erection of our Lincoln motor cars and private planes and
auditorium. (gymnasium). This SINCoMI a rash of TV antennae, so we are
building blew down when they COU",.,W ‘ ~ quite as modern as most, but it is
were putting the beams in it and 000 was incorporated as a  still fun to talk to our oldtimers
the rubble was then cleared away vijjage August 31, 1947, The first  and listen to their storles. Our one
and the walls rebuilt. It burnedin 0" wag G.C. Brown; LH. time town marshall used to tell of
the spring of 1924 and would have g, ,esc Walter, Pfeiffer, Tobias  his mother cutting Billy the Kid's - --e =
. :burn_ed;pgam in 1955 If it had not Baros, Arthur Melton, and Mrs. hair 4s he sat 'with a rifle across "~ . " . -
- been: for_the .efforts.of-.the —oayyae-Frgiks a8 Clork madé Up - hisgZknees,  Another favorite
- volunteer fire department. In1931, . 5 fipgy Village Council. Santaigo  anecdote concerns a Mrs, Trapp

the

- Cibola National Forest is adjacent
- to the town and extends to the west

‘present . high school
was built, In 1950, the new
gymnasium was built and has
been ranked as the third bes{ in
the state. o -

The Gallinas District, of the

Torrez replaced Tobias Baros at
the next election, and Mrs. Eula
Mays replaced Mrs. Franks as
Clerk. >
‘was held in the auditorium which
was used for all community
activities;

- One of the 'first-Sunda); Schools

later the people’

who lived over the hill east of -

town, One day.she sent her nine
year old son a mile down to a
" neighbor's home Lo borrow a cup

of sugar. When-he did not return in

what she thought a reasonable
‘length of time, she tock down the
shotgun and started out to look for

o

This was the"old' nurses home al

been torn down.

Fort Stanton which long since has

GWdness -

and north.. The surrounding gonated cash and labor, and the him. About a half mile down the |
country is made up of farms and  community Church was built with  trail she came upon her son

excellent grazing lands. The g, oornerstones representing cowering behind a bush while.a | |

recent drout_h has hit everyone (p. Methodist, Baptist, panther was watching him and | R L

though, as can be attested to the  preghyterian, .and Christian  getting ready lospring. She raised |« - * - Ou eX ont

~once prosperous farms which dre o yopes, The “Preacher Jones” the gun to her-shoulder, took | =~ y N pec

now abandoned homes and fields ' Gajlinas added his Bible for.the. careful aim, and killed (he | = _ e

that dot the coutryside. Jfifth cornerstoie representing the  panther, Later whén asked-what -{ -~~~ o = <
~ The Gallinas Lookout on top of. "Assembly of God organization. . she would have done had she " g Quality Chekd A
~ Gallinas Mountain to the This church was: served by -missed, she  replied in all" | . T M rerese o
- souithwest of Corona is visible on'a  ifinerant ministers. and later earnestness, ‘‘Heavens, I couldn't .| BT l AR D Ys

~clear day -and "stands as a became the Baptist Church, Later - afford to miss!!Shells cost nine [ " W  DAIRY PRODUCTS

guardian of the: washed slopes the Catholic and Assembly of God ‘cents a piece” ¢ L — —_—
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